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GLOSSARY

RAJR

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the ~RAARFRA - X EDSHFIEIN - THFA=ES

following terms shall have the meanings set out below.

2023 Policy Address”
[2023F B R E |

“2024 AGM”
[2024FRHAFKRZ |

"AGD"
(SR EER |

“AGM"
[BRBFARE ]

“AGT"
[=ELAIR

“Articles of Association”

[T 4R

“Ascend”
[ Ascend ]

“Audit Committee”

[EZEREE]

“Board”

=S
“business day”
[&%A ]

“BVI”
[REBREXES ]

“CEO”"
[T

“CG Code”
[{bEERFA]

“Chairman”

[£F]
“Chit Tat”

Rr=d

BATORiSE -

the 2023 Policy Address of the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Government
EABT R E2023F BERE

the AGM to be held on Tuesday, 10 September 2024
17202459108 (R =) BT RBF RS

Accel Development Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

SEMERRBRAR  ARANEEREENB QR

the annual general meeting of the Company

AABRFBFAR

Accel Innovations Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

SRAFAERAR - ARARNEEEZENBAF

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
RATVAEEEZIRZMA - ETBHERT

Ascend Group Holdings Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Ascend Group Holdings Limited * ZNABIME 2 &M E A A

the audit committee of the Board

EFSgEnE8e

the board of Directors

=g

any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong Kong) on which
licensed banks in Hong Kong are generally open for business

EFRFBEBIT-RAPIZENEAE T (BN - EHE BB RRBRBRIN)

the British Virgin Islands
KBRS

the chief executive officer of the Company

ARARITIRAREL

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

AR BIMERC1E S M E A PR
the chairman of the Board
EExgERE

Chit Tat Electrical Engineering Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

EERETRERAR  ARANHELEHEAR

Accel Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024



“close associates”

[EZHEA

“code provision(s)”
SIS d

“Company”
VNS

“Company Secretary”
[RREMWE ]

“connected person(s)”

[EEEAL

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ AR AR
“Corresponding Year”
[ £ ]

“COVID-19"

[ 2L AR P8 =

"“Director(s)”

==

“Dr. Ko”

[&iEL]

YEQM”
[H42E |

“Group” or “our” or “Accel”

or “us” or “we"

[ ARSIkl A Ikl =t

“HK$" or “"HKD" or
"HK cents”

[ETT ki1l ]

“Hong Kong”
e

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmRRIRTE T AR R

code provision(s) as set out in the CG Code
1R A ST RIESI Y #) 5T RIMESC

Accel Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1283)
SREEZERERAR  KNAESHSTMA I AER AR - BN =i (k5
5% - 1283)

the company secretary of the Company

RRRREIWE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmRRIRTE T AR R

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules, and in the context of the
Company, means Dr. Ko, Ms. Cheung and Lightspeed Limited, or any one of them

BB FWRAFE THRE - AR S ESE L - skt Klightspeed Limited -
SEFMEF—RAL

the year ended 31 March 2023
B ZE2023F3HA31HILFE

the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19), a respiratory illness caused by a novel
coronavirus

2019 MRB AR AL EMRBEER) - FHEENES 5 R IR R GR R

the director(s) of the Company

RAFESE

Dr. Ko Lai Hung, the Chairman, an executive Director, the CEO, one of the Controlling
Shareholders, the spouse of Ms. Cheung and the father of Mr. CK Ko

SREELT  TF - WITES  THRAR BERERRz— - Rt zREBREEEE
G- 0%

electrical and mechanical

HE

the Company and its subsidiaries

RATREMERE

Hong Kong dollars or cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EEEEEBABITIGE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
hiE AR KNBEEEFRITTERR
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“INED(s)"
(B IFITES]

“Lightspeed”
[Lightspeed |

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Rules”
[ Er#R Al

“Main Board”
Ed

“Memorandum of Association”

EEE =R Nl
“Model Code”
[1Z2E<F A ]

“Mr. CK Ko"
[EEAERLE]

“Ms. Cheung”
[R& |

“MVAC”
[ WA R R 2 22 SR A T

“Nomination Committee”

[fRRZEE]

“Register of Members”

[ ER 4 i

“Remuneration Committee”

[(FMEZE ]

"

FC”

[EEe

4]

f

"SFO"
[ 55 R AR 1B

the independent non-executive Director(s)

BIFBITES

Lightspeed Limited, a company incorporated in BVI and the holding company of the
Company

Lightspeed Limited * —HRREBEZHSEMK A AR - BARRIAIERAF]

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board
PR EMR T

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from
time to time

B prES EMARA - EAEERT

the stock market operated by the Stock Exchange
B R FTEERIRE T %

the memorandum of association of the Company, as amended from time to time

AR B NEERTH BB EIZ KM

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
TR BIFERCIFTE D LM BT AN ZEZETE SR HHIELESTA

Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit, a non-executive Director and a son of Dr. Ko and Ms. Cheung

BEESLE - FRTESESBLERLLZR T

Ms. Cheung Mei Lan, an executive Director, one of the Controlling Shareholders, the
spouse of Dr. Ko and the mother of Mr. CK Ko
REMUL  AITESF  ERRRZ— ST 2RERSEELENHER

mechanical ventilation and air-conditioning

Mt a | K 22 R AR

the nomination committee of the Board

ExeRvw%Be

the register of members of the Company

AABRERAM

the remuneration committee of the Board

EEeFMEEe

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

FRRFLEEGERZBE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong

EEEDIESNEE S NS ERD

Accel Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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GLOSSARY fa%
“Share(s)” share(s) of nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
[ A5 RARIRAR GIREEO.017E T2 kD
“Shareholder(s)"” the holder(s) of Share(s)
e SSRESZEPN
“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
[ B2 A BEBBER AR AR
“Year" the year ended 31 March 2024
[RFE | BZE20245F3A31BLFE

EREERRARAT 204FF8 07
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B EEE

RESULTS E4
For the year ended 31 March
BZEZ3A31MHILEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 20234 20224 20214 20204F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRt T FAETT F&TT T
Revenue A 553,537 538,492 547,315 508,904 522,332
Profit before taxation B AT A 48,800 65,977 81,709 86,462 88,255
Income tax expense FTiSfiA > (8.381) (10,078) (13,729) (13,159) (15,600)
Profit for the year AN g A 40,419 55,899 67,980 73,303 72,655
Profit attributable to RARERRR
equity shareholders of FEAE R
the Company 40,792 56,477 68,181 73,303 72,655
FINANCIAL POSITIONS B HEAR R
As at 31 March
M3H31H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 20234 20224 20214 20204F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FA&TT FH&TT T
Current assets MEVEE 427,420 459,451 430,033 436,502 304,028
Non-current assets ERBEE 98,754 92,550 13,879 30,105 63,194
Current liabilities mEaE 99,229 146,312 71,735 112,476 60,999
Non-current liabilities IERBEE 5,250 8,277 1,065 1,410 1,205
Net assets BEFE 421,695 397,412 371,112 352,721 305,018

Total equity attributable ~ ZNA Rz AT R
to equity shareholders PRI 4R EE

of the Company 422,835 398,179 371,302 352,721 305,018
Non-controlling interests ~ JEZA% [ 4EZE (1,140) (767) (190) = =
Total equity HEmAEEE 421,695 397,412 371,112 352,721 305,018
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the Year.

The pandemic has ended with the withdrawal of all epidemic
prevention policies locally and globally after three years. All sectors
of the society have high expectations for the development of the
new economy after the epidemic. However, the continuous tension
in international geopolitics and the global interest rate hike cycle
have brought heavy pressure on recovery of the local economic, and
the construction industry is even more burdened. Faced with such
a complex and ever-changing business environment, our Group still
relies on the unity of all, the professional ability of electromechanical
project management, to control project cost expenditure and
continue to complete multiple large-scale engineering contracts.

In terms of electromechanical engineering, our Group has always
been committed to strengthening cost control, improving quality
management, and actively expanding business. During the Year,
we continued to receive multiple large-scale electromechanical
engineering contracts, including multiple private residential
electromechanical installation services. In addition, our Group
participated in multiple electromechanical engineering projects
of commercial buildings and government infrastructure projects
and the air conditioning system renovation projects of commercial
buildings, laying the foundation for the diversified development
of the group’s electromechanical business. The amount of our
Group's unfinished contracts remains about 900 million Hong Kong
dollars, which is enough to prove the affirmation of our project
management capabilities by various customers. In the future, we will
seize business development opportunities and enhance the ability to
obtain new projects, laying a solid foundation for the growth of our
Group's business.

In addition, our Group also continues to develop diversified
businesses. Our Group actively develops immigration consulting
services to match the “grab talents, retain talents” initiative
proposed in the 2023 Policy Address. This move can inject
continuous new momentum into the growth of the group and the
local economy. Our Group is committed to changing the quality of
human life with technology and making contributions to society,
environment, and governance. During the Year, various university
joint laboratories named after our Group were completed one after
another. Our Group’s continuous donations to various universities
to promote the development of the creative science field officially
entered the scientific research stage. Our Group hopes that the
relevant scientific research can be successful as soon as possible and
applied to human life, creating more business opportunities while
building a better life for mankind.

EEHRE

HEBR :

RANBHRREARRFEEE - MARE
FENFERS -

REEAR

Ei F o B A B BBEE A B R BUR M

HER o SR AN EREBHNCOERRBE R
ﬁ o AT+ BIBRHAABUARHEZR R 2RISR
HS AR B AE AONER ) - FREE T ] B
EtME - MEINETE S M ERIRE - A%
EREREL T 0 ABEZWEHE TIELE
71 ?ﬂ¢ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁilﬁg%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@
TiREH -

WEIRAE @ ARE—EB ST
RABEERE  WEBRERES - A - K
BREXZIEAKETIESH - HPBEZIATL
ANEEHELRRRT o BRULLAIN - REERES
BREZEETFT  BNERER HEIRER KA
EAENTEAZGEHLRE  AEBEREERS
TERETER - AEEZ RTHE NS EMER
Z’]jﬂu%m RUAFEAZSEPEHBMIER B
NZEFE o KK - BPIBNBEEZBEREES RIE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁi%ﬂﬁﬁz%ﬁj} RSB EBIERETE R
BECER -

o - REBETFERBEZITES - ARER
B3R AR ER R ARG 2023 F R S 52
HZ[BAT - BAS i - R A RK REHE

RARBRBERFIINRRTE 258 - AEE
HAOUMBREABLRERZREHE  R’E
E}uﬁﬁf’ﬁﬁaﬁiﬁ FA - AREEBEZEKXR

BHSEREREEN - NEBHEARRIFE
TﬁEKLME@JEIJﬂ R R IE AR - N
SEHLEMRTEF AR AL AN ABELE
B HREEZEEANRR S ABRKERTE
& e
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Looking forward to the future, it is expected that the impact of
external macroeconomic factors such as geopolitical tensions and
high-interest rate business environment will continue, bringing new
challenges to the local economy and the development of our Group.
Facing the complex and changeable new economic environment,
our Group will combine the prudent business strategy of the past
with a flexible and changeable operating model, and continue to

provide high-quality services to customers.

Ko Lai Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS PROFILE

The Group is an established E&M engineering services provider.
The Group’s major business involves the supply, installation and
maintenance of MVAC systems, drainage systems, water supply,
swimming pool and fountain systems, electrical and control
systems as well as smart electrical control systems in buildings. The
Group has been engaged by reputable property developers and
construction companies in Hong Kong to complete several iconic
projects. The Group will continue to strive to provide excellent E&M
engineering services to the Group’s customers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the local and global economies have shown little
sign of recovery due to the consequential impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. Coupling with global inflation, enormous challenges
have been posed to local productivity. In response, the Group has
adopted a pragmatic and positive attitude towards risks, sought
solutions and strengthened the quality of project management, and
enhanced the ability to control costs within budgets.

The Group has maintained steady business development during the
Year. The Group was granted a number of large-scale E&M projects
during the Year, including several large-scale E&M installation
projects in the public sector and a chiller replacement project for a
commercial building. The Group will maintain the advantage of the
Group in sustainable development and enhance the Group’s ability
to acquire new projects in difference sectors to lay a solid foundation
for the Group'’s business development.

Other than the E&M engineering services, the Group has also
engaged in the development of scientific research by making
donations to certain local universities during the Year in order to
develop the technological application in the metaverse; blockchain
technology as well as the smart building system. The Group will
continue to invest in the scientific research sector in order to
generate brand-new business opportunities as well as provide
trainings to new talents.

In response to the “Attract and Retain Talents” initiative proposed
in the 2023 Policy Address, the Group has actively developed
immigration consulting services in the Year. This new venture
should show that the Group is eager to grasp any new business
opportunities presented to it with the hope to develop new income
streams.

BEBRImR DT

E 3

AEE R —HEREANKE TR HERD -
AEENEBZFZH AR - RERFREEWBER
RZERFBERS - BKES - K - TOBREK
MRS - ENMNERRRMETERLLRRS -
AEEEREERMERRANMZERRERNA
TREZBERRIEEETRAR - AREBEER
WRAKENEFREHEEHRE TRRR

FEH O

RAEE - A REREERBHETRRER
RIEREFEMFERE - ML2IEK - €4
WHEENHREALE - AEEUBEREERE
EEERER - SRARTER - WIRTIZEE
B - RITATREZESIREN -

AEERAFRENR\BEBREER - ARER
AEERFZAALNKEIRR - BRBEERAE
PR KB ELREIA R RAEARE S KEE R
HE - AREREREASEAFEERZES
FRANEERNTRARERFIAE 26N B
AR EHRRBEREER -

B E TRERIGIN  ARBRAFEINAETA
HWARBER - RARMER - UERTTEHANK
MEM  BIEEMAREREERS - A5E
e BB AR - LAES g kA
18T BRAIE o

RER2023FEBRERENIEBAS - B
7B ARERAFERGERAZERR
1% o A EBRR AN EE S 2 ILEE A
# o WA RFEEFEOBATR
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately HK$15,045,000 or
2.8% from approximately HK$538,492,000 for the Corresponding
Year to approximately HK$553,537,000 for the Year. The slight
increase was mainly due to the accelerated project progress noted
during the Year for certain residential projects located in Kai Tak
development area.

Cost of services

The Group's cost of services mainly represented (i) cost of materials
including MVAC systems such as air conditioners and ventilation fans
and accessories such as pipes and fittings; and (ii) subcontracting
fees for completing on-site works. The cost of services increased
by approximately HK$22,147,000 or 5.0% from approximately
HK$443,556,000 for the Corresponding Year to approximately
HK$465,703,000 for the Year.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit decreased by approximately HK$7,102,000
or 7.5% from approximately HK$94,936,000 for the Corresponding
Year to approximately HK$87,834,000 for the Year.

The Group's gross profit margin decreased by 1.7% to 15.9% for
the Year as compared with the Corresponding Year of 17.6%. The
decrease in the gross profit margin was mainly due to the fact that
a substantial amount of revenue of the Year were recognised from
certain new projects commenced during the Year with a lower profit
margin compared to the projects commenced in the Corresponding
Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised staff costs, travelling
and transportation expenses, rental and building management
fees, professional fees, office expenses, depreciation expenses and
other expenses. Administrative expenses increased by approximately
HK$6,568,000 or 19.3% from approximately HK$34,102,000 for
the Corresponding Year to approximately HK$40,670,000 for the
Year. The increase in administrative expenses of the Group was
mainly due to the increase in office expenses and depreciation of
the properties acquired during the Year. The Group believes it can
improve the working environment and increase the productivity of
its staff.

Accel Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

Bt 7 B8

W 2=

A £ B Uz R & F R %) 538,492,000 78 It 1%
J0 #9 15,045,000 8 LK 2.8% E A F E M A
553,537,000/ 7T © BEAEMIE M EZHRA
FERMNEERENE TEEEENER#
FE R o

PR 7 B Ax
REERREKEAEZRBOMBAAE - BIEH#
WBRRKERAGHES  flanzEA - BRE
B RS B RGi)TTRIRIE TR D
BE o fRIS KA B = F K 49443,556,0007%8 7T
HAN422,147,000 Lk 5.0% EAXRFEHL
465,703,000/ T °

FERNRER =X

REE R EF B EFH4H94,936,00078 TTIE 249
7,102,000/ 708, 7.5% = 2 fE H) £987,834,000
FEIT ©

AEBWEFNEREFN17.6%HD1.7% 24
FEM15.9% ° EFIEFDTIEEZRREEFH
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THAX

THRASZFERFEEIRA  ZRERABE -
HEeEREFERE ZHHEEAR HAZERX -
WERIEEMAY - THREXHEFND
34,102,000, 7T 1 496,568,000 7034 19.3%
ZEAREZHAIA0,670,00058 7T ° NEBRTTEE
48N E B A E PN = R SN & BT U EE
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Trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments decreased
by approximately HK$38,153,000 or 30.8% from approximately
HK$124,032,000 as at 31 March 2023 to approximately
HK$85,879,000 as at 31 March 2024.

Trade receivables (net of allowance of credit losses) decreased
by approximately HK$34,103,000 or 32.6% from approximately
HK$104,695,000 as at 31 March 2023 to approximately
HK$70,592,000 as at 31 March 2024. The decrease is mainly due
to the enhanced receivable control implemented and a substantial
amount received before the year-end date for the MVAC installation
projects in Kai Tak.

Prepayments for purchase of materials and subcontracting
fees decreased by approximately HK$5,011,000 or 41.1%
from approximately HK$12,181,000 as at 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$7,170,000 as at 31 March 2024. The significant
decrease in the balance is due to the realisation of the prepayments
for the purchase of material and subcontracting fees as part of
the cost of services. Certain prepayments for securing the material
supply have been utilised as service costs in the financial year.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment increased by approximately
HK$7,359,000 or 12.1% to approximately HK$68,227,000 as at 31
March 2024 from approximately HK$60,868,000 as at 31 March
2023. The increase of the property, plant and equipment is mainly
due to the acquisition of a vessel by the Group during the Year.

Contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets represent the Group’s rights to considerations from
customers for the provision of E&M engineering services, which
arise when: (i) the Group completes the relevant services under
such contracts but not yet certified by architects, surveyors or other
representatives appointed by the customers; and (ii) the customers
withhold certain certified amounts payable to the Group as retention
money (i.e. retention receivables) to secure the due performance of
the contracts. Contract liabilities represent the Group's obligation to
provide E&M engineering services to customers for which the Group
has received advance payments from the customers.

Contract assets decreased by approximately HK$16,439,000
or 6.4% from approximately HK$258,488,000 as at 31 March
2023 to approximately HK$242,049,000 as at 31 March 2024.
The decrease in contract assets was mainly due to increase in the
number of contract works that the relevant services were completed
and has not yet been certified by architects, surveyors or other
representatives appointed by the customers at the end of the
reporting period.

B REMBRRE B RAMNRE

ZSREMBEBKARIE - Ee REMRIERH
202343 A 31 B #J 49 124,032,000 7 7T )& > 49
38,153,000/ 755(30.8% £2024F3 A31 BHH4Y
85,879,0005 7T °

Z 5 WG IE (HIBRE BB EE#) H2023F3 8
31 HAY#7104,695,000/% T 2> 4934,103,000/%5
TC5K32.6% E2024F3 A31 B H#770,592,0007%
TT ° 2B E E R AN E KRt 5 MG IR 5
KA 45 A BT B RS M B R & 22 R B e 5
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Contract liabilities decreased by approximately HK$9,541,000 or
58.4% from approximately HK$16,332,000 as at 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$6,791,000 as at 31 March 2024. The decrease in
contract liabilities was mainly due to the realisation of the advances
received from customers for certain new projects as revenue for the
Year.

Pledged bank balances and cash and cash
equivalents

The Group’s pledged bank balances were to secure the grant of
performance bonds to the Group by a bank. The pledged bank
balances and cash and cash equivalents increased by approximately
HK$24,574,000 or 33.0% from approximately HK$74,359,000 as
at 31 March 2023 to approximately HK$98,933,000 as at 31 March
2024. The increase was mainly due to the enhanced receivable
control measures imposed by the Group in order to minimise the
financial risks by improving the bank balances.

The pledged bank balances and cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in HKD and were mainly generated from the Group's
daily operations. With a strong financial position, the Group is able
to provide sufficient financial resources for the Group’s current
commitments, working capital requirements and further expansion
of the Group’s business, as and when required.

Trade and retention payables and accruals

Trade and retention payables and accruals decreased by
approximately HK$18,583,000 or 24.1% from approximately
HK$77,266,000 as at 31 March 2023 to approximately
HK$58,683,000 as at 31 March 2024.

Trade payables decreased by approximately HK$23,521,000 or
44.4% from approximately HK$52,924,000 as at 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$29,403,000 as at 31 March 2024. The decrease
in the balance is due to the settlement of certain trade payables such
as sub-contractors and suppliers before the financial year-end date as
compared with those in the last financial year.

Retention payables increased by approximately HK$1,995,000 or
15.1% from approximately HK$ 13,205,000 as at 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$15,200,000 as at 31 March 2024. The increase
in the retention payable was mainly due to the enhanced project
progress by the Group’s sub-contractors for the installation of the
MVAC systems in Kai Tak.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBt o1

Bank loans BITER

Bank loans decreased by approximately HK$23,956,000 or 50.4%  $R1TE 7K H202343 A31HKI#I47,550,00078 7T
from approximately HK$47,550,000 as at 31 March 2023 to  J82*4923,956,000,8 7T3¢50.4% £2024F3 H31
approximately HK$23,594,000 as at 31 March 2024. The decrease  H#J%923,594, OOO/ETE fETTETJ\/m CTIEE R
in the bank loans mainly due to the repayment of the bank loans  RIRIEEZEIEER  REBIRTTER
according to the repayment schedules. There is no seasonality on I #EZFEHE ,\\uﬁﬁl%/’émuﬂﬁ =

the Group’s bank loans and the balances were denominated in HKD.

2024 2023
20245 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Bank loans, secured and guaranteed RITER - BEAREER 23,594 47,550

According to the relevant bank facilities letters, details of the bank  1RIEMBRERITREE B - B 2202453311 -
loans of the Group in accordance with the scheduled repayment AEBSRITEZIRTATEZ A BNOT ¢
dates as at 31 March 2024 are as follows:

2024 2023
2024F 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
The carrying amounts of the above BERERERIERZRIT
bank loans that contain a repayable on /TAE-EE@(E’\/ BB EIE TYIT)
demand clause (shown under current 1&5,5\155 =
liabilities) but repayable:
Within one year —FR 1,934 24,538
Within a period of more than one year but ~ —#F LA HERBBRFHR
not exceeding two years 1,413 1,394
Within a period of more than two years but ~ MFLA_HERBBRFHRR
not exceeding five years 6,100 5,978
More than five years FFEUE 14,147 15,640

23,594 47,550
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The Group's bank loans as at 31 March 2024 were lent by a bank
under its bank facilities granted to the Group. The bank facilities
were guaranteed by the corporate guarantee given by the Company
(2023: guaranteed by the corporate guarantee given by the
Company). In addition, the secured bank loans were secured by
the Group's two carpark spaces and an office premise (2023: three
carpark spaces and an office premise).

Notwithstanding the provisions stated in the aforesaid bank
facilities, the bank may at any time without prior notice, modify,
cancel or suspend the banking facilities, at the sole discretion of
such bank; including, without limitation, cancelling any unutilised
facilities and declaring any outstanding amount to be immediately
due and payable. Accordingly, the above bank loans were classified as
current liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

Included in the bank loans as at 31 March 2024 were bank loans
of HK$23,594,000 (2023: HK$46,967,000), which bore variable
interest rate from 2.75% to 2.85% per annum below Hong Kong
Prime Rate quoted by the relevant bank (2023: variable interest rate
from 2.5% to 2.85% per annum below Hong Kong Prime Rate
quoted by the relevant bank). At 31 March 2023, the bank loans of
HK$583,000 bore variable interest rate at 1.5% per annum above
one-month Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR").

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Expanding the Group's service capabilities and capture business
opportunities to reinforce the Group’s position in the E&M
engineering industry remains. The Group will provide customers
with more comprehensive E&M engineering services, increase its
market share with a prudent financial management strategy. The
Group's projects on hand yet to recognise revenue remains around
HK$900,000,000 as at 31 March 2024. In addition, the Group
has ventured into immigration consulting services in the Year. It is
expected that this venture will form a foundation of the Group’s
diversified business profile in the future.

Going forward, the Group will continue to make the most of its
advantages and actively participate in tendering and ensuring
stable growth of the Group’s business. At the same time, the
Group will expand the Group’s presence in E&M projects in
commercial buildings, and continue to actively look for new business
opportunities and bring better returns to the Shareholders.

Accel Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

AREEN2024F3 A31 BNRITERT i —RE
TRBEEREFAEBERHFEITREED - RITRLE
LA A AR A A RIERIEIE(R (2023F : AA
AR A A RIERIEER) o AN - BIRARTT
BERUAREENMECEEMRE —EARAEWE
(20234 : ZfEFEA N —EARAEWE) (EK
o

BE LMERITRES|RRE - RITATRER 2R
EMBASLBATERER - BUHEEIRTT
mE - BFEETEREUETAASHARERS
MR AKEESENEDBEERMS - At - ®
20249 202343 A31H » FitiRITER DA
BREALE -

R2024F3 A31EMRTERBIERITER
23,594,000 7T (2023 4 : 46,967,000/ 7T ) °
LHRBRITRESREEN RN F2.75%
£2.85%H))F B A 3R (2023 4F : L MEBERTT
FreR &S & ER M ERN T2.5% £2.85% K /F
FEFR)FHE - 20235F3A31H @ RITER
583,000/ LI BB IRITZRERE ([ B BRIT
BEFE AR ZZBFFEI5%TE °

RIRAT=
NEEBGEERT IR 8e 1 RITEE#E - EimE
BEIASLBMNHE TR TEFR AL - AEBBE
BREIWIRHE2EMOME TERGLURERA
MABEENS - UREMNPTFERREIRAT
BINEE o WN202453A31H - NEEFIE FRHE
SRHIE B #45900,000,00058 742 A © LSS 0 AR
EENAEE SR ARERIRS o BetxE5
BREBRRZ T EB NS AR -

AEBRKGEER D BHERY - BERIENE
FRAKEEBREER - BEFRE - NEEKE
AAREE2ERRETRBUFERZNKERR -
YEBBERAEHEE - SEREREENHR

7 ©



As announced in the 2023 Policy Address, the Hong Kong
Government will continue to invest in infrastructure and make
available sufficient land for private housing development. The Group
will seize the business opportunities, by building on its foundation
in providing quality E&M engineering services, and venture into
new areas of innovation and technology, smart technology, energy
conservation and environmental protection while expanding its
diversified business in the construction area. In addition, based on
business development needs, the Group will identify prospective
business partners and joint venture opportunities for different
business segments to broaden the Group's business scope and drive
cross-border development, thereby generating greater returns for
the Shareholders.

In the field of innovation and technology, the Group has cooperated
with The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and The Education University
of Hong Kong to implement various research product designs and
make contribution to the realisation in the metaverse, blockchain
technology and smart building systems. The Group fully supports
the government policy in promoting and developing the scientific
research sector in Hong Kong, thereby generating brand new
business opportunities for the Group's future operations.

Environmental protection and energy conservation, reducing carbon
emissions and energy consumption as well as facing the impacts of
climate change has become a global issue. The Central Government
of the PRC has already stipulated the targets in reaching carbon
peak in 2030 and carbon neutrality in 2060 in the 14th Five-Year
Plan. The Hong Kong Government has announced the Hong Kong's
Climate Action Plan 2050 with certain decarbonisation targets to
be achieved. As a key player in the industry of the installation of
E&M systems, the Group carries the responsibility to protect the
ecosystem, and to ensure environmental protection while promoting
growth and development of the society. The Group has been
appointed as a founding member of the Greater Bay Area Carbon
Neutrality Association, devoting our effort to promote the carbon
neutral business in the Greater Bay Area. The Group endeavours
to incorporate energy saving technologies and renewable energy
into E&M systems to achieve low-carbon transformation and
develop green economy. The Group will actively look for partners
to promote plans for energy conservation and emissions reduction
in Hong Kong, striving to attain carbon peak and carbon neutrality
targets, and lay the foundation for the Group's intelligent E&M
business through utilising innovative technologies and the concept
of intelligent energy.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group's working capital was financed by
internal resources and loan facilities from banks. The current ratio of
the Group, which is calculated based on the current assets divided
by current liabilities, was approximately 4.31 times as at 31 March
2024 (31 March 2023: approximately 3.14 times). The Group
generally financed its daily operations from cash flows generated
internally and external borrowings. The Group strikes to maintain
a healthy financial position to support the business growth by
balancing the source of financing.

FINANCIAL POLICIES

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of the
trade and retention payables, bank loans and lease liabilities. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated based on the total
interest-bearing liabilities divided by the total equity (defined as
the sum of bank loans and lease liabilities as at the respective
year end divided by total equity as at the respective year end)
was approximately 8.5% as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
approximately 15.2%).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, the Group incurred cash outflows of approximately
HK$13,022,000 in leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and
equipment and motor vehicles and yacht (2023: HK$3,876,000 in
leasehold improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment).

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 March 2024, the capital expenditure in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial statements is HK$353,000 (31
March 2023: HK$12,353,000).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2024, performance bonds of HK$94,428,000 (2023:
HK$79,942,000) were given by banks in favour of the Group's
customers as security for the due performance and observance of
the Group's obligations under the contracts entered into between
the Group and its customers.

Included in the performance bonds as at 31 March 2024 were
HK$367,000 (2023: HK$12,323,000), which were issued under
the bank facilities granted by a bank to the Group and such bank
facilities were secured by the Group’s pledged bank balances and
corporate guarantee given by the Company in favour of the bank.
The remaining performance bonds as at 31 March 2024 were issued
under the bank facilities granted by banks to the Group and such
bank facilities were secured by the Group’s two carpark spaces, an
office premise and corporate guarantee given by the Company (2023:
three carpark spaces, an office premise and corporate guarantees
given by the Company) in favour of the banks.

Save as disclosed herein, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no material subsequent event after 31 March 2024 up to
the date of this annual report which requires disclosure.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024, an office premise, certain motor vehicles,
refundable rental deposits, two carpark spaces and pledged bank
balances of the Group were pledged for the lease liabilities and the
bank facilities (31 March 2023: secured by an office premise, certain
motor vehicles, refundable rental deposits, three carpark spaces and
pledged bank balances).
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Year, save as disclosed herein, the Group did not make
any other material acquisitions or disposals of its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

FUTURE PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024, save as disclosed herein, the Group did not
have any other plans for significant investments or capital assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in HKD. The Group is not significantly
exposed to foreign currency risk arising from monetary assets
and liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the respective group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy as the foreign currency risk is considered to be insignificant.
However, the management will continue to closely monitor the
Group's foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure when necessary.

CREDIT RISK EXPOSURE

The Group’s major customers include reputable property developers
and main contractors. During the Year, the Group has closely
monitored and strengthened its collection measures, and has
adopted prudent credit policies to mitigate credit risk exposure.
The Group was not exposed to any significant credit risk during
the Year. The Group’s management reviews the recoverability of
trade receivables and closely monitors the financial position of the
customers from time to time with a view of keeping the Group'’s
credit risk exposure at a reasonably low level.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2024, the Group employed 197 employees (31
March 2023: 178 employees) with total staff costs (including direct
labour costs) of approximately HK$94,084,000 incurred for the
Year (Corresponding Year: approximately HK$85,046,000). In
order to attract and retain high quality staff and to enable smooth
operation within the Group, the remuneration policy and package
of the Group’s employees are periodically reviewed. The salary
and benefit levels of the employees of the Group are competitive
(with reference to market conditions and individual qualifications
and experience). The Group provides adequate job training to the
employees to equip them with practical knowledge and skills. Apart
from mandatory provident fund and job training programs, salaries
increment, discretionary bonuses and share options may be awarded
to employees according to the assessment of individual performance
and market situation.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18 September
2019 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
participants for their contributions or potential contributions to the
Group. Such scheme became effective on 18 October 2019.

In addition, the Group has adopted a share award scheme in the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 September
2023, for the purpose of providing incentives to attract, retain and
motivate eligible participants, for their continual contribution to the
growth and development of the Group.

CORPORATE RECOGNITION

In the area of corporate social responsibility, the Group is
being recognised as Hong Kong Green Organisation from the
Environmental Campaign Committee. The Group has also received
the EcoPartner Award and EcoPioneer Award of BOCHK Corporate
Low-Barbon Environmental Leadership Awards from Federation of
Hong Kong Industries in recognition of the Group’s performance
in the field of energy conservation and environmental protection.
The Group will continue to improve its service quality, adhere to the
required safety and environmental standards, and take the Group’s
corporate social responsibilities commitment to the next level in
order to deliver excellent E&M services to the Group’s customers.
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COMPETING INTEREST

During the Year, none of the Directors or the Controlling
Shareholders or their close associates was interested in any business
which competed or might compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group nor had or might have with the Group
any conflicts of interest.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.3 cents per Share (2023: HK1.6 cents per Share) for
the Year (the “Final Dividend”) to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members on 20 September 2024, which
amount to approximately HK$10,541,000 (2023: HK$12,800,000).
Subject to the passing of the relevant resolution at the 2024 AGM,
the Final Dividend is expected to be paid to the Shareholders on or
around 14 October 2024.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
In relation to 2024 AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Thursday, 5 September
2024 to Tuesday, 10 September 2024, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfers of Shares shall be effected. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2024 AGM, all transfers of
Shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms, must be lodged for registration with the Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 4 September
2024.

In relation to the proposed Final Dividend

Conditional on the passing of the resolution approving the
declaration of the Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the 2024
AGM, the Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 17
September 2024 to Friday, 20 September 2024, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfers of Shares shall be effected. In order
to qualify for the Final Dividend, all transfers of Shares, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms, must be lodged
for registration with the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 16 September 2024.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. Ko Lai Hung (5% #), aged 54, is the founder of our Group,
the Chairman, an executive Director, our CEO and one of our
Controlling Shareholders. He joined our Group on 18 February 2000
and was appointed as a Director on 20 September 2018. Dr. Ko was
appointed as the Chairman and the CEO, and was re-designated
as an executive Director on 24 January 2019. He is also a member
of our Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
He is responsible for the overall strategic planning, management
and administration of our Group’s business operations. Dr. Ko is
currently a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Ko is
the spouse of Ms. Cheung, an executive Director, and the father of
Mr. CK Ko, the non-executive Director. Dr. Ko is also a director and
shareholder of Lightspeed Limited, a Controlling Shareholder.

Dr. Ko holds a number of important social positions, including
member of Fujian Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and deputy chairman of Hong Kong
Federation of Fujian Associations. Dr. Ko obtained an honorary
degree of doctor of business administration from the Westcliff
University in March 2021 in recognising his managerial and
professional experience in the E&M engineering industry, as well
as his community contribution. Dr. Ko has been appointed as
vice president of the GBA Carbon Neutrality Association and the
deputy director of Carbon Neutrality Committee of China Energy
Conversation Association for his contribution to the China’s
determination, goals, initiatives and effectiveness in combating
climate change.

Dr. Ko has accumulated over 30 years of experience in the E&M
engineering industry in Hong Kong. Prior to founding the Group,
he was the proprietor of Chit Tat Engineering Co, which was mainly
involved in the provision of electrical engineering services in Hong
Kong, from 1995 to 2006. With his extensive industry experience,
Dr. Ko founded, together with other industry players, Hong Kong
Air Conditioning Construction Association Limited (& /& 22 #8 & &%
7 & A R 2 ), a non-profit-making organisation with a mission
of strengthening the connection and communication among air
conditioning contractors in Hong Kong in June 2018. He has been
leading the association as the president and one of the directors
of the association since founding the association. Chit Tat is also a
member of this association.
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Ms. Cheung Mei Lan (3R 32 8), aged 54, is an executive Director
and one of our Controlling Shareholders. She joined our Group on
18 February 2000 and was appointed as a Director on 20 September
2018. Ms. Cheung was re-designated as an executive Director on 24
January 2019. She is responsible for the overall strategic planning,
management and administration of our Group’s business operations.
Ms. Cheung is currently a director of Ascend and Chit Tat. She is the
spouse of Dr. Ko, an executive Director and the mother of Mr. CK
Ko, the non-executive Director. Ms. Cheung is also a director and
shareholder of Lightspeed Limited, a Controlling Shareholder.

Since the incorporation of Chit Tat, Ms. Cheung has accumulated
more than 18 years of experience in the E&M engineering industry
in Hong Kong. She has been a director of Chit Tat since 2000.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit (S51#£), aged 30, was appointed as the
non-executive Director on 24 January 2019. He is a member of our
Audit Committee. Mr. CK Ko is responsible for advising on business
development and planning of our Group. Mr. CK Ko is a son of Dr.
Ko and Ms. Cheung, both being executive Directors.

Mr. CK Ko graduated from the University of Rochester in the United
States with a master’s degree in finance and The University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in economics and finance in
December 2016 and November 2015, respectively. He became a
member of the Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst Association
in November 2017. Mr. CK Ko is the Director of Capital Markets at
Everest Ventures Group (EVG), a Hong Kong-based Web 3.0-focused
venture studio, since May 2022. Prior to joining EVG, Mr. CK Ko was
a SFC licensed Responsible Officer of Type 1 (dealing in securities)
and representative of Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
in Hong Kong at Bright Minds Capital Limited.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (Ff & #£) (“Mr. CT Chan”), aged 74, was
appointed as an INED on 18 September 2019. He is the chairperson
of our Nomination Committee and a member of our Audit
Committee and our Remuneration Committee. Mr. CT Chan is
responsible for providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. CT Chan has over 33 years of work experience in the Inland
Revenue Department. His last position was assistant commissioner
before he retired in 2005. Mr. CT Chan graduated from the Central
Queensland University in Australia with a master’s degree in financial
management in October 1995 through distance learning. He has
been an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute of London,
the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute since March 1974 and August 1994, respectively. Mr. CT
Chan has also been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since March 1986; a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since November 1983; and a fellow
of CPA Australia since June 1990.

Mr. CT Chan has been the sole director of C T Tax Consultants
Limited, a tax consultancy, since August 2006. Further, Mr. CT
Chan has been an independent non-executive director of each of
Medicskin Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8307), Hyfusin Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8512), Chong Fai Jewellery Group
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 8537), Ye Xing Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1941) and Wasion Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 3393) since December 2014, June 2018, September
2018, February 2020 and June 2020, respectively.
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Ms. Tse Ka Wing (#%58), aged 40, was appointed as an INED on
18 September 2019. She is the chairperson of our Audit Committee.
Ms. Tse is responsible for providing independent advice to our
Board.

Ms. Tse obtained an associate of business administration degree in
accountancy and a bachelor of business administration degree in
accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2004 and November 2006, respectively. She also obtained a master
of corporate governance degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in September 2018. She has been a member of The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and an associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since November
2018. In addition, Ms. Tse has been a member and a certified public
accountant (practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2011 and March 2014, respectively.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Tse has accumulated over 18 years
of financial and accounting experience. She worked as an auditor in
Andrew Tse & Company from September 2006 to February 2008.
Thereafter, she served BDO Limited for five years with her last
position as assistant manager (assurance) from February 2008 to
November 2013. In November 2013, Ms. Tse joined Union Honor
International Enterprise Limited as an assistant accounting manager,
and then worked in HKUE Limited from November 2014 to March
2016 with her last position as financial controller. Subsequently,
Ms. Tse served as the financial controller and company secretary at
Kwong Man Kee Group Limited (Stock Code: 8023) from March
2016 to December 2017. Ms. Tse worked in Skyway United Limited
from March 2018 to January 2021 and her last position was chief
financial officer and company secretary. She worked in YONXI
International Finance Holdings Limited from February 2021 to
January 2023 and her last position was chief financial officer and
company secretary. She is currently a practising director of PY CPA
Company Limited since January 2023.
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Mr. Ho Chi Shing ({1 & &), aged 72, was appointed as an INED
on 18 September 2019. He is the chairperson of our Remuneration
Committee and a member of our Nomination Committee. Mr. Ho is
responsible for providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Ho graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
of science degree in engineering, a postgraduate diploma in software
engineering, a master of business administration and a postgraduate
certificate in laws in November 1976, January 1989, November 1991
and June 2011, respectively. He also obtained a graduate diploma
in English and Hong Kong law (common professional examination)
and a bachelor of laws from The Manchester Metropolitan University
in July 2008 and July 2009, respectively. Mr. Ho was admitted as a
member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers in November 1981.
He has been: (i) a Chartered Engineer of the Council of Engineering
Institutions since February 1982; (ii) a member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers since July 1985; and (iii) a member of the
Chartered Institution of Building Services Engineers since April 1982
and a fellow of it since March 2004. He practised as a Barrister-at-
law from October 2012 to December 2014.

Mr. Ho has over 30 years of experience in the construction industry
in Hong Kong. He worked in China Light & Power Company Limited
from September 1976 to October 1979 with his last position as
a second engineer of the sub-station design department. He had
served the Hong Kong Housing Authority for about 32 years from
October 1979 to September 2011 with his last position held as the
chief building services engineer. He had been an honorary advisor
for Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research Institute
Company Limited from October 2011 to October 2016. Mr. Ho
became a member of the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency’s
governing council in 2005, and was appointed as deputy chairman
in November 2011 and chairman in November 2019. Mr. Ho has
been working at BEAM Society Limited as a general manager since
March 2014. He had been appointed as a part-time lecturer of
Tsinghua Research Institute Shenzhen from 2011 to 2016, and he
also served in Shenzhen Audencia Business School in 2018 as part-
time lecturer. He is currently an Adjunct Associate Professor of The
University of Hong Kong, a post he took up since 2019 after serving
as an honorary principal lecturer since mid-2010’s in the Department
of Electrical and Electronic Engineering of The University of Hong
Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Chi Wai (E83&12), aged 38, is our chief financial officer
and Company Secretary. He joined our Group in August 2019 and is
responsible for overseeing our Group’s financial operations and the
overall corporate governance of our Group.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the
Edinburgh Napier University, a Master of Business Administration
degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the
Certificate in ESG Investing from CFA Institute. He is a fellow
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an Associate of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants.

Mr. Cheng has around 15 years of experience in finance and
auditing, corporate governance and compliance matters for
companies listed in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked at Rocky Shek & Co. from 2011 to 2013 as an auditor. From
2013 to 2015, he worked at BDO Limited as senior associate and
worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2015 to 2019 with his
last position as an audit manager.

Mr. Lam Ka Tak (#£2X18), aged 55 is a project director of our Group.
He joined our Group in December 2015 as a project manager and
was subsequently promoted to senior project manager and project
director in February 2017 and January 2019, respectively. Mr. Lam
is primarily responsible for the overall management of our Group'’s
E&M engineering projects.

Mr. Lam obtained a higher diploma in mechanical engineering from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1994. He has
over 20 years of experience in the construction industry. Before
joining our Group, Mr. Lam worked in Kervin Engineering Co., Ltd.
from October 1993 to November 2012 with his last position held as
project manager. He also served as the project manager of Pyrofoe
Air-Conditioning & Electrical Co., Ltd. from December 2012 to
October 2015.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
77 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.3 cents per Share for the Year to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members on Friday, 20
September 2024, amounting to approximately HK$10,541,000
(2023: HK1.6 cents per Share, amounting to approximately
HK$12,800,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group during the Year and
the discussion on the Group’s future business development are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, and the descriptions
of key financial performance indicators are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. There was no significant
event affecting the Group that occurred since the end of the Year
and up to the date of this annual report which had materially
affected the Group’s operations and financial performance.
In addition, discussions on the Group’s relationships with key
stakeholders, environmental policies and performance, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group and the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group are as follows:

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group's success also depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers and
subcontractors and suppliers.

Employees

Employees are regarded as our important and valuable assets. The
objective of our human resource management is to reward and
recognise performing staff by providing a competitive remuneration
package and implementing a performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and
progression by appropriate trainings and by providing opportunities
within the Group for career advancement.
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We regularly review our human resources and remuneration policies
in the light of legislation, industry practice, market conditions and
the performance of individuals and the Group in order to enhance
the job satisfaction of our staff.

Customers

Our principal customers are property developers and main
contractors in Hong Kong. We provide professional and quality
services in supply, installation and maintenance of MVAC systems,
whilst maintaining long term profitability, business and asset growth.

Subcontractors and suppliers

We firmly believe that our subcontractors and suppliers are equally
important in cost control and increasing their bargaining power on
procurement of materials, which further secures our competitiveness
when bidding for tenders. We proactively communicate with our
subcontractors and suppliers to ensure that they are committed to
delivering high-quality and sustainable products and services. Unless
the customers require us to engage subcontractors and suppliers
nominated by them, we shall select subcontractors and suppliers
from our approved lists of subcontractors and suppliers. In addition,
during the continuance of the contracts with the subcontractors,
we will provide them with our internal guidelines on safety and
environmental issues and require them to follow. We effectively
implement the subcontractor assessment process to monitor the
performance of our subcontractors by conducting regular site visits,
evaluation on the performance of the contract and other measures.

Environmental policies and performance

We believe that our business success also depends on our ability to
meet the customers’ requirements in respect of safety, quality and
environmental aspects. To meet the aforesaid requirements, we have
established safety, quality and environmental management systems.
Through the systematic and effective control of its operations,
compliance with safety, quality and environmental requirements can
be further assured. We are fully engaged in the carbon reduction
programme in order to promote green production. We are a
founding member of Greater Bay Area Carbon Neutrality Association
and have been awarded the Corporate Environmental Leadership
Awards from the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in recognition
of our contribution in carbon reduction.

The detailed environmental policies and performance evaluation of
us during the Year will be disclosed in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company, which will be published on the
Company'’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website separately in
due course.
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

We mainly undertake E&M engineering services in Hong Kong, the
Directors confirmed that during the Year, the Group had obtained
all the registrations and certifications required for its business
and operations and had complied with the applicable laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, in all material respects.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations of the
Group may affect the Group’s financial position and prospects. The
Group has been focusing on the control of risks and uncertainties
with the aim of understanding and addressing the concerns of
stakeholders. Key risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are
listed below:

- the revenue is mainly derived from E&M engineering projects
which are non-recurrent in nature and any failure of our
Group to secure new projects would affect our operations and
financial results;

- error or inaccurate estimation of project execution timeframe
or project costs may result in cost overruns and may adversely
affect our revenue and profitability;

- reliance on the major customers;

- the revenue and profit margin are subject to fluctuations
driven by various factors such as variation orders and the
recoverability of contract assets, and the past revenue and
profit margin may not be indicative of our future financial
performance; and

- may not be able to bill and receive the full amount of trade
receivables, retention receivables and contract assets, if
progress payment or retention money is not paid in full and on
time, the liquidity position may be adversely affected.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 8 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the applicable laws and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to HK$252,086,000 (including share premium
available for distribution amounting to HK$195,606,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 80 of this annual report and note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Ko Lai Hung
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Mei Lan

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Ms. Tse Ka Wing
Mr. Ho Chi Shing

Pursuant to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association, Ms. Tse Ka Wing and Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit shall
retire at the 2024 AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for
re-election.

Information regarding the Directors’ and chief executive's
emoluments are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

For details of the Directors’ profiles, please see the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and has duly reviewed the confirmation of
independence of each of the INEDs. The Company, based on
such confirmations, considers that all of the INEDs continue to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The non-executive Director has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company with a term of 3 years, commencing from 18
September 2022. None of the Directors who are proposed for
election or re-election at the 2024 AGM has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EENBETHRAERA QAT RE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, #HECZEIRIIRG - HBAR (D R EE
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES EFHFHEZR AR

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be (a) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO; or (c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

R2024F3A31H  SEERARAREREITEA
BRARR MEREEZE (TR LESRBEK
BIEEXVED) RIRR (5 - BRI D R EEET - #E
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RBRONER

Number of Percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity Nature of interests Shares held  shareholding

EEgE &1 ERME FrsRA &8 RETDLE

(Note 2)

(PtE2)

Dr. Ko (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation Corporate interest 597,000,000 73.62%
= E () AR I E R A B

Ms. Cheung (Note 1) Interest of spouse Family interest 597,000,000 73.62%
SRz (FIRET) iR N Lo
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Notes:

1. The 597,000,000 Shares are held by Lightspeed, which is beneficially
owned as to 70% by Dr. Ko and 30% by Ms. Cheung. Under the SFO,
Dr. Ko is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lightspeed
and Ms. Cheung, spouse of Dr. Ko, is deemed to be interested in the
Shares deemed to be held by Dr. Ko.

2. The percentage represents the number of Shares interested divided
by the number of the issued Shares as at 31 March 2024 (i.e.
810,827,000 Shares).

Long position in the ordinary shares of an
associated corporation

GEE

1. 597,000,000 A% % 17 75 FA Lightspeed 3 & © %
AEHEEERRZEDERZEETON K
30% ° BIEFEHF KBS KD - SELEEAR
Lightspeed B 2 R R B S RRXZ LT (5
B2 REE)ERARSH LR ARG ZBRG
AR ©

2. Bt a RS 2 RN EE RARE E2024
F3A31A 2B 8TIRMHEE (BN810,827,000%
BD) o

RAEBEE 2 EBROT R

Name of
associated Number of Percentage of
Name of Directors corporation Capacity Nature of interests shares held shareholding
BEps BB EEER 56 BHfME Fris i 2 e REBT AL
Dr. Ko (Note) Lightspeed Beneficial owner and interest  Personal interest and family 200 100%
of spouse interest
AT () Lightspeed BB AREBER 18 AR S R R e zn
Ms. Cheung (Note) Lightspeed Beneficial owner and interest  Personal interest and family 200 100%
of spouse interest
sR2t (Pt aE) Lightspeed BB AREBER T8 AR S R R e zn

Note: Lightspeed is the holding company of the Company and is an
associated corporation within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
Lightspeed is beneficially owned as to 70% by Dr. Ko and 30% by Ms.
Cheung, spouse of Dr. Ko, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/
she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
(b) recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2024, so far as our Directors are aware, the
following entity(ies) which/person(s) (other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company) who had, or were taken or deemed
to have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the Shares RROHPHNER
Nature of Number of Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity interests Shares held  shareholding
RERAMR -37) EEME FERHEE REBD L
(Note 2)
(B&E2)
Lightspeed (Note 1) Beneficial owner Personal interest 597,000,000 73.62%
Lightspeed (Fff7£1) EnEEA (EUN- 5
Notes: BteE

1. Lightspeed is beneficially owned as to 70% by Dr. Ko and 30% by Ms.
Cheung, spouse of Dr. Ko, respectively.

2. The percentage represents the number of Shares interested divided
by the number of the issued Shares as at 31 March 2024 (i.e.
810,827,000 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, the Company had
not been notified by any other entity(ies) which/person(s) (other than
a Director or the chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which were
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme"”)
of the Company was approved for adoption pursuant to a written
resolution of the then sole shareholder passed on 18 September
2019 for the purpose of providing an incentive or reward to the
eligible participants for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group.

1. Participants of the Share Option Scheme and
the Basis of Determining the Eligibility of the
Participants

The Board is entitled at any time and from time to time grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to any full-time
or part-time employees, consultants or potential employees,
consultants, executives or officers (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
and any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents, advisers,
business partner or service providers who, in the sole opinion
of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

2. Grant of Options

The Directors were authorised to grant options to subscribe for
Shares and to allot, issue and deal with the Shares pursuant
to the exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and to take all such steps as may be necessary and/
or desirable to implement and give effect to the Share Option
Scheme.

3. Maximum Number of Shares Available for
Subscription and Scheme Limit

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option schemes of the Company must not,
in aggregate, exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in
issue immediately following completion of the Share Offer
and the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the Prospectus), and
the Share Option Scheme limit is 80,000,000 Shares, which
represented 9.87% of total number of issued Shares as at the
date of this annual report. No service provider sublimit was set
under the Share Option Scheme.

Accel Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

BT E

ARR B BEERETE([BRESEDHER
2019F9 H 18 HIBEATME — IR B v EERH
REERY - BERABRZESIRESEK
2E)  URBRSEUAEEAMENEESEER
Jgj(‘ °

1. BRESENSHERERE
BERHNEE

®

EaE

EX S RREBEEREIMNMEMERER
P A AR A R EAEAA B A R E A 2R
ARBEE  FAARNEBEEER - #FW
A BITABESHABB (BREATES
FATEERBIIIFNTES) EFER
BRRBEHREHARRR R, EEAM
BLRWELERMEMHER TP - &
AN RE - ER - ZRa R ASRBRE
HER LB -

2. ROBRAE
EER AR EBRENRERG - WiRE
8 SO S 2 T T T4 S I A 4T (3 T R
B BITREERG - U REESHHTR
EEBRETEM SRS ER @
BOFEERTH -

3. QM%%WMG%E%E&H%L
RIEBE AT B A R BT (] H A BE AR 4
TR BE R B M BB ARE FTS R R D &=
HE  AHETESHBRBENBERMHEERE
M7 (INERERFTER)TREDR
BITRDAAER10% » BEERHEREI HBR
/#80,000,0008% %15 + #B&E R ARG R B Hi
D BTN B EH9.87% BT 21
N E RIS D THREE o



Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall remain valid and effective until
the tenth anniversary of the 18 October 2019, being the date
of Listing.

Grantee’s Maximum Holding

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting, the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon the exercise of all options granted to an eligible
participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of
total number of the Shares in issue within any 12-month
period. Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by the INEDs.

Grant to Substantial Shareholders and INEDs

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules, the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted and proposed to be granted
to a substantial shareholder or any INEDs or their respective
associates under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) shall not exceed 0.1% of
the Shares in issue.

Exercise of Options

The Board may, at its discretion, determine the minimum
vesting period for which the option has to be held before it
can be exercised, and the period during which an option may
be exercised. However, no options shall be exercised ten years
after they have been granted.
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8. Exercise Price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of a particular
option shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of the grant of the option, which must be
a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

9. Acceptance of Offer

An offer shall be made to any eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme by an offer document in such form as
the Board may from time to time determine, requiring such
participant to undertake to hold the option on the terms on
which it is to be granted and to be bound by the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme. To accept any options granted by
the Company, the grantee is required to pay a consideration
of HK$1 on or before the last day of acceptance set out in the
relevant offer document.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up
to the date of this annual report, no share options were granted,
exercised, vested, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme.

As at 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024, the total number of share

options available for grant under the Share Option Scheme limit and
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme were 80,000,000.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) at the AGM held on 15 September 2023 (the
“Adoption Date"”) for the purpose of providing the selected
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company, encouraging the selected participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for
the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole; and
providing the Company with a flexible means of either retaining,
incentivizing, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or
providing benefits to the selected participants.

1.

Eligible Participants of the Share Award
Scheme

Only employee participants shall be eligible for the Share
Award Scheme (the “Eligible Participant”). Employee
participants refer to any Director (excluding any independent
non-executive directors) and employee of the Group (including
persons who are granted share awards under this Share Award
Scheme as inducement to enter into employment contacts
with these companies).

Grant of Award

The Remuneration Committee and the Board may, at its sole
discretion make the relevant grant of awarded shares (the
“Award Shares”) to the selected participants under the
Share Award Scheme subject to such terms and conditions
as the Remuneration Committee and the Board may deem
appropriate at its discretion.

Maximum Number of Shares to be Granted

The total number of the Award Shares which may be issued
in respect of all options and awards to be granted under the
Share Award Scheme and any other schemes shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s total number of
Shares in issue (i.e. 800,000,000 Shares) as at the adoption
date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Scheme Mandate
Limit is 69,173,000 Shares, which represented 8.53% of total
number of the issued Shares as at the date of this annual
report. No service provider sublimit was set under the Share
Award Scheme.
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4.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

No award may be granted to any one Eligible Participant
such that the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
in respect of all options and awards granted to such person
(excluding any options and awards lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Award Scheme) in any 12-month
period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the
issued Shares from time to time, unless such grant is separately
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting.

Vesting of Awarded Shares

The vesting period of an Award for new Shares held by the
Eligible Participant must be at least 12 months. A shorter
vesting period may be granted to an Eligible Participant at the
Board's sole and absolute discretion in certain circumstances
prescribed in the Share Award Scheme.

Basis of Determining the Purchase Price of
Awarded Shares

The purchase price of the awarded shares (if any) shall be such
price which shall be determined by the Board from time to
time based on considerations such as the prevailing closing
price of the Shares (being the average closing market price for
the five business days preceding the date of grant on which
the Shares are traded on the Stock Exchange), the purpose of
the Award and the characteristics and profile of the Selected
Participant.

Life of the Share Award Scheme

The Share Award Scheme commences on the Adoption
Date and remains valid and effective unless and until being
terminated upon the expiry of the period of ten (10) years
from such date.

During the Year, 10,827,000 Awarded Shares had been awarded.
As at 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024, the maximum number of
Shares that available for grant under the Scheme Mandate Limit
and available for issue under the Share Award Scheme were 0 and
69,173,000 Shares. The number of Awarded Shares granted divided
by the weighted average number of issued shares during the Year
was approximately 1.4%.
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Movements of the Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme

for the Year are as follows:

Unvested
Unvested Granted Vested Cancelled Lapsed as at
Name of Purchase as at during during during during 31 March
participant Date of Grant Price 1 April 2023 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2024
120235 120245
4718 3A31H
BB 8 BEE 5B AFERY AFERE AFENH  AEEAX AEE
Ms. Wong Hoi Yan 15/09/2023 N/A - 500,000 (50,000) - - 450,000
(Notes 1, 2)
HIERL 15/09/2023 TER
(M1~ 2)
Ms. Wong Hoi Ki 15/09/2023 N/A - 220,000 (22,000) - - 198,000
(Notes 1,2)
BSELL 15/09/2023 TEA
(WizE1 - 2)
Ms. Ko Karlie 15/09/2023 N/A - 300,000 (30,000) - - 270,000
(Notes 1, 2)
ERlRL 15/09/2023 TR
(M1~ 2)
Mr. Wong Hau Wai 15/09/2023 N/A - 800,000 (80,000) - - 720,000
(Notes 1, 2)
HiEELE 15/09/2023 T
(M1~ 2)
Mr. Cheung Choi On 15/09/2023 N/A - 202,000 (20,200) - - 181,800
(Note 1)
RERFE 15/09/2023 TEA
(1)
Employees - 15/09/2023 N/A - 8,805,000 (880,500) - - 7,924,500
In aggregate (Notes 1, 2)
EE-2% 15/09/2023 il
(M1~ 2)
Total - 10,827,000  (1,082,700) - - 9,744,300
a5t
Notes: Pff=E -
1. The vesting will take place on 31 March of each year beginning in 1.  (FEBi§H2024F £ =2033F LW EF3A31H

ST WERDI10OREFERE o AN () I

REMER -

2024 and ending in 2033 and shall be vested in 10 equal tranches.
There is no performance target attached to the Awarded Shares.

2. The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which 2. BERFRHEENH B (12023698 148 ) Ak
the share awards were granted (i.e. 14 September 2023) was HK$1.01 DT EAFRR1.01%8TT -
per share.

ANEMABEENREROOETAFEN B
9,282,000/ 7T ° % & ZE AR 1D B 5T A 1B
TERE L BN ERTE - WRYEREHEA
REAERBRFRAEIRETTR BFHE -

The estimate fair value of the Awarded Shares granted during the
Period was approximately HK$9,282,000. The estimated fair value
of the Awarded Shares granted was measured based on the grant-
date price with the adjustment of ex-dividend discounted at the
appropriate risk-free interest rate during the requisite service period.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year or as at 31 March 2024 was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and none
of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group during
the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing connected transactions

During the Year, the Group has conducted the following continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Employment agreements between the Group and
connected employees

Chit Tat continues to employ certain employees who are connected
persons of the Company following the Listing.

As disclosed in the announcement published by the Company
dated 31 March 2022 (the “March Announcement”), Chit Tat
terminated the employment of each of Mr. Cheung Choi On, Mr.
Wong Kai Chau, Ms. Ko Karlie, Mr. Wong Hau Wai, Ms. Wong Hoi
Yan and Ms. Wong Hoi Ki (the “Connected Employees”) with
effect from 31 March 2022 and entered into new employment
agreements (the “New Employment Agreements”) with each
of the Connected Employees. Pursuant to the New Employment
Agreements, each of the Connected Employees is employed
under new terms. Under the New Employment Agreements, the
Connected Employees will continue to take up employment at their
respective role in the Group, which they took up prior to the Listing,
for a term of three years from 1 April 2022.

As disclosed in the announcement published by the Company dated
1 November 2022 (the “"November Announcement”), Accel
Green Building Limited has entered into the employment contract
(the “Employment Contract”) with Mr. Ko Chun Hei Rand (/=& ER),
the son of Dr. Ko and Ms. Cheung and the brother of Mr. CK Ko
(“Mr. CH Ko") in relation to his employment with the Group for a
term of 3 years commencing from 1 November 2022 to 31 October
2025.
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Mr. CH Ko and the Connected Employees are either siblings or
relatives of the three Directors, Dr. Ko, Ms. Cheung and Mr. CK Ko.
The details of their relationships with the Directors are set out as
follows:

Name Connected relationship
=t BERR

Mr. Cheung Choi On

RIERTHE
ME °

Mr. Wong Kai Chau
Mr. CK Ko.

=ERAESE

Mr. Ko Chun Hei Rand
of Mr. CK Ko.

&L

Ms. Ko Karlie

=SBt

Mr. Wong Hau Wai

mIREBRE

Ms. Wong Hoi Yan

=LA L

Ms. Wong Hoi Ki

=AHL LT

Each of Mr. CH Ko and the Connected Employees is a connected
person of the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the New Employment Agreements and the Employment
Contract constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As (i) Mr. CH Ko
and the Connected Employees are either siblings or relatives of the
three Directors, Ms. Cheung, Dr. Ko and Mr. CK Ko; and (ii) the
nature of the New Employment Agreements and the Employment
Contract are the same, such transactions shall be aggregated in
accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

For details in relation to the New Employment Agreements
and the Employment Contract, please refer to the March 2022
Announcement and the November 2022 Announcement,
respectively.
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SEREEELEEREA=REZ(AIREL
SR+ REEGETE) T BBEIRSEER - BEF
HEENREFBERIILT

Mr. Cheung Choi On is a brother of Ms. Cheung, a brother-in-law of Dr. Ko
and an uncle of Mr. CK Ko.

RELREERRZTZEAF GELzRAR FREEREEZ
Mr. Wong Kai Chau is a brother-in-law of Ms. Cheung and an uncle of

BRBELEERRLLZAR BREEFREEZRA -
Mr. Ko Chun Hei Rand is a son of Dr. Ko and Ms. Cheung and the brother

SEREEASBLIRRLLT 2R FURSEELEEZRLF -

Ms. Ko Karlie is a niece of Dr. Ko and a cousin of Mr. CK Ko.

EEBXT AL IEL INBEREEGREEZE I -

Mr. Wong Hau Wai is a nephew of Ms. Cheung and a cousin of Mr. CK Ko.
BREEERRILIZER IMEREEEREZRLF -

Ms. Wong Hoi Yan is a niece of Ms. Cheung and a cousin of Mr. CK Ko.
BYR AT RRE T 2BXIMEZ REEBETEZ R,k -

Ms. Wong Hoi Ki is a niece of Ms. Cheung and a cousin of Mr. CK Ko.
BEHA T RRE T 2B X IMEE REEB G EZ RS,k o
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As disclosed in the November 2022 Announcement, the annual
caps, being the total remuneration payable to the Connected
Employees and Mr. CH Ko, had been revised and will not exceed
HK$4,500,000, HK$5,000,000 and HK$5,500,000 for the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024, year ending 31
March 2025, respectively (the “Revised Annual Caps”). The
Revised Annual Caps were determined with reference to (i) the
historical amounts of the total remuneration paid to the Connected
Employees; (ii) the contractual amounts payable under the New
Employment Agreements and the Employment Contract; (iii)
the expected adjustments in the salaries of Mr. CH Ko and the
Connected Employees during the relevant contractual period; and (iv)
the expected amount of discretionary bonus and overtime pay that
may be payable to Mr. CH Ko and the Connected Employees during
the relevant contractual period.

All the INEDs have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that such transactions were entered into:

0) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the respective agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

With reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
auditor has confirmed in their letter to the Board that nothing has
come to their attention which caused them to believe that such
continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(i)  the aggregate amount paid by the Group in respect of such
continuing connected transactions has exceeded the annual
cap for the year ended 31 March 2024 as disclosed in the
November Announcement.
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Related party transactions

Details of the Group's related party transactions are disclosed in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save and except (i) the transactions specified in note 33(a)(1), (4)
and (5)(b); and (ii) the remuneration of the senior management
members of the Group forming part of the “Compensation of
key management personnel” described in note 33(b), all other
transactions stated in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Group.

The transaction described in note 33(a)(5)(a) to the consolidated
financial statements refers to the continuing connected transactions
regarding the New Employment Agreements and the Employment
Contract as disclosed above in this section. Save as aforesaid, all
other connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements are fully
exempt from reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions conducted by the Group as
disclosed in this annual report.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
(i) there was no other transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year; and (i) there
was no other contracts of significance (whether for the provision of
services to the Group or not) entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into by the Group or existed during the Year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates had any interests in a
business, apart from the business of the Group, which competes or
may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group or has any other conflict of interest with the Group which
would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules.

Non-competition undertaking

In order to avoid any possible future competition between the Group
and each of the Controlling Shareholders, each of the Controlling
Shareholders as a covenantor (the “Covenantor”) has executed a
deed of non-competition (the "Deed”) in favour of the Company
(for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries), pursuant to
which, each of the Covenantors undertakes, inter alia, that it/he/she
will not, and will use its/his/her best endeavours to procure, its/his/
her close associates (other than any member of the Group) not to,
whether directly or indirectly, whether for profit or not, participate
in or engage in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes
or may compete with the Group’s business. For details, please refer
to the prospectus of the Company dated 27 September 2019.

Each of the Covenantors has confirmed to the Company that he/she/
it has complied with the non-competition undertakings under the
Deed during the Year. The INEDs have reviewed on their compliance
with the Deed and confirmed that (i) they were not aware of any
non-compliance of the non-competition undertakings under the
Deed by each of the Covenantors; and (ii) such undertakings had
been duly enforced and complied with by each of the Covenantors
during the Year.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for its Directors and officers. The relevant
provisions in the Articles of Association were in force during the
Year and as at the date of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was set
up by the Board upon the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence. The emolument of the Directors are determined by the
Board based on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme and the Share
Award Scheme as an incentive to eligible persons, details of which
are set out under the paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme” above respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group's retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association or
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules throughout the Year and up to the
date of this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted
to HK$3,667,000 (2023: HK$1,609,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 58% of the Group’s
total revenue and the revenue from its largest customer accounted
for 20% of its total revenue.

In addition, the Group’s purchases attributable to its five largest
suppliers accounted for 34% of the Group's total purchases and the
purchases from its largest supplier accounted for 14% of its total
purchases.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best of the knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the total number of issued Shares) had any
interests in any of the Group’s five largest customers or the Group's
five largest suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any Shares during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of corporate governance report are set out on pages 50 to
69 of this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2024.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B Z B ED

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ~ A&BIREE20224F ~ 20234 & 20243 A31
ended 31 March 2022, 2023 and 2024 were audited by Deloitte ~ HIFFEHMRE T EHRARD HER T AREEE
Touche Tohmatsu, the independent auditor engaged by the Group, M AZZATHEE)RIZ IR H Sata/THEZ @ =)
who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at ~ #&R2024F IR EBEF AL RE - HEEFEER

the 2024 AGM. I FE S HEAETE o

On behalf of the Board REESZS

Ko Lai Hung TR TTBAARFENTEE
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director SR

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024 B - 20246 H28H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\gﬁ#ﬁ #Ett

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholders’ values
through good corporate governance. The Directors recognise the
importance of incorporating elements of good corporate governance
in the management structures, internal control and risk management
procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted and, save for the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as disclosed in this annual report,
has complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG
Code during the Year.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Dr. Ko Lai Hung is the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the CEO. He has been managing the Group's business and
supervising the overall operations of the Group since 2000. The
Board considers that vesting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO
in Dr. Ko is beneficial to the management and business development
of the Group and will provide a strong and consistent leadership
to the Group. The Board has a total of six Directors and three of
them are INEDs who are qualified professionals and/or experienced
individuals. As all major decisions are made in consultation with
all the Board members who meet on a regular basis to review the
operations of the Group, and shall be approved by majority approval
of the Board, with the three INEDs on the Board scrutinising
important decisions and offering independent perspectives, the
Board believes that there are adequate safeguards in place to
ensure sufficient balance of powers within the Board. The Board will
continue to review and consider splitting the roles of the Chairman
and the CEO at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking
into account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company made specific enquiry of all Directors and they confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the Year and up to the date of this annual
report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising the
management of the business affairs and the overall performance of
the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and standards and
ensures that the requisite financial and human resources support
is in place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions
performed by the Board include but are not limited to formulating
the Group’s business and investment plans and strategies, deciding
all significant financial (including major capital expenditure) and
operational issues, developing, monitoring and reviewing the
Group’s corporate governance practices and all other functions
reserved to the Board under the Memorandum of Association
and Articles of Association. The Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference. The
responsibilities of these Board committees include monitoring the
Group’s operational and financial performance, and ensuring that
appropriate internal control and risk management systems are in
place. The Board may from time to time delegate certain functions to
the management of the Group if and when considered appropriate.
The management is mainly responsible for the execution of the
business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and
other duties assigned to it from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and
the management has an obligation to supply the Directors with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable the Directors
to perform their responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to holding the view that the Board
should include a balanced composition of executive Directors, non-
executive Director and INEDs so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the
following six Directors, of which the INEDs in aggregate represent
50% of the Board members:

Executive Directors
Dr. Ko Lai Hung (Chairman and CEQ)
Ms. Cheung Mei Lan

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit

INEDs

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Ms. Tse Ka Wing

Mr. Ho Chi Shing
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The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report.

Dr. Ko, the Chairman, an executive Director and the CEO, is the
spouse of Ms. Cheung who is an executive Director. Dr. Ko and Ms.
Cheung are the parents of Mr. CK Ko, the non-executive Director.
Save as disclosed above, there was no financial, business, family or
other material relationship among the Directors during the Year.

The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgement to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving on
various Board committees, all INEDs will continue to make various
contributions to the Company.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, meeting the
requirements of the Listing Rules that the Board must include at
least three INEDs and the number of INEDs must represent at least
one-third of the Board members, and that at least one of the INEDs
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
in writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation and not aware of any
adverse event, the Company considers that all the INEDs are
independent and have met the independence guidelines as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board Independence

The Board has established mechanism to ensure independent view
and input are available to the Board when it discharges its duties.
Such mechanism includes:

1. Annual evaluation of training sessions undertaken by each of
the Director during the financial year;

2. Obtaining advice from external advisers when and where
required;

3. A Director (including an independent non-executive Director)
who has a material interest in a contract, arrangement or
other proposal shall abstain from voting or be counted in the
guorum on any Board resolution approving the same; and

4. The chairman of the Board meets with the independent non-

executive Directors annually without the presence of the
executive Director and non-executive Directors.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Directors will receive a formal, comprehensive and tailored induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that
he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and business and is fully aware of the director’s responsibilities
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, other legal
and regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.

The Company from time to time fund and arrange suitable
training to all Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in relation to their duties and responsibilities, such that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. All
Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expense and they have been requested to provide
the Company with their training records. According to the training
records maintained by the Company, all Directors, namely Dr. Ko,
Ms. Cheung, Mr. CK Ko, Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Ms. Tse Ka Wing
and Mr. Ho Chi Shing, had participated in continuous professional
development during the Year by reading newspapers, journals
and updates relating to the economy, general business, corporate
governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities and/or
attending training sessions organised by professional bodies in Hong
Kong.

Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days
in advance. For all other Board meetings, notice will be given in a
reasonable time in advance. The Directors are allowed to include any
matter in the agenda that is required for discussion and resolution at
the Board meeting. To enable the Directors to be properly briefed on
issues arising at each of the Board meetings and to make informed
decisions, an agenda and the accompanying Board papers will be
sent to all Directors at least three days before the intended date of
the Board meeting, or such other period as agreed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for keeping all Board meetings’ minutes.
Draft and final versions of the Board meetings’ minutes will be
circulated to the Directors for their comment and record respectively
within a reasonable time after each Board meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.
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The Board held four meetings during the Year and, amongst other
matters, considered and approved the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 and
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the six months ended 30 September 2023.

One general meeting of the Company was held during the Year.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the
general meeting held during the Year is as follows:

Name of Directors

Dr. Ko S
Ms. Cheung SR+
Mr. CK Ko SIEEELE
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZELE
Ms. Tse Ka Wing A AL LT
Mr. Ho Chi Shing A&

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a policy relating to Board diversity and
discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the same.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All the
appointments of the Board members shall be based on the positive
contribution to be brought by the proposed candidate to the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or its affiliated companies. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Board currently comprises of six Directors, two of which are
female. Our diversity philosophy is to avoid a single gender Board.
One is in the age group of 30-39, one is in the age group of
40-49, two are in the age group of 50-59 and two in the age
group of 70-79. The background of our Directors includes business
administration, E&M engineering, economics and finance, financial
management, tax, accountancy, engineering and law. In view of
these, the Nomination Committee was of the opinion that the Board
consisted of members with diversified gender, age, cultural and
education background, professional/business experience, skills and
knowledge. The Board is of the view that it has achieved gender
diversity.

GENDER DIVERSITY OF THE GROUP

The workforce of the Group currently comprises a total of 196
full-time employees, of which 164 are male (approximately 83.7%)
and 32 are female (approximately 16.3%). As the principal business
of the Group is the provision of E&M engineering services, which
is labour intensive, the Group is of the view that it is challenging
to achieve gender diversity in the workforce. Nevertheless, with
the Group’s recruitment system, we will strive to achieve a gender
diversity of 35% female employees in the coming five years.

The senior management of the Group currently comprises a total of
2 people, both of which are male. This is principally due to the fact
that there are only approximately 16.3% female employees in the
Group. The Group will continue to source outstanding talents both
within and outside the Group to strive and achieve gender diversity
in the senior management level in the coming five years.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Dr. Ko is the Chairman and the
CEO. He has been managing the Group’s business and supervising
the overall operations of the Group since 2000. The Board considers
that vesting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO in Dr. Ko is
beneficial to the management and business development of the
Group and will provide a strong and consistent leadership to the
Group. The Board has a total of six Directors and three of them are
INEDs who are qualified professionals and/or experienced individuals.
As all major decisions are made in consultation with all the Board
members who meet on a regularly basis to review the operations of
the Group, and shall be approved by majority approval of the Board,
with the three INEDs on the Board scrutinising important decisions
and offering independent perspectives, the Board believes that
there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient balance
of powers within the Board. The Board will continue to review
and consider splitting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO at a
time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account the
circumstances of the Group as a whole.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit
Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Ms. Tse Ka Wing and Mr.
Chan Cheong Tat, and the non-executive Director Mr. CK Ko. Ms. Tse
is the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include
but are not limited to:

e making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and handling any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor;

e reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

e discussing with the auditors the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

e  developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services;

e monitoring the integrity of the Group'’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them;

e discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with the Company’s management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective systems. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function;
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e reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

e reviewing arrangements employees of the Group and those
who deal with the Group (e.g. customers and suppliers)
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters.

During the Year, three Audit Committee meetings were held and,
amongst other matters, considered and approved for presentation
to the Board for consideration and approval the draft audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2023 and the draft unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2023, as well as reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and re-appointment of
external auditor.

The attendance of each Director in the capacity of a member of the
Audit Committee at the meetings held during the Year is as follows:

Name of Directors
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Ms. Tse Ka Wing HEAL T
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZESAE
Mr. CK Ko =IEAETE

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Ho Chi
Shing and Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, and an executive Director Dr. Ko.
Mr. Ho is the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include but are not limited to:

e making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing a remuneration policy;

e reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
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e making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

®  making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

e ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

e reviewing and/or approving matters relating to the share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held
and, amongst other matters, made recommendations to the Board
on (i) the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management; and (i) the remuneration of non-executive
Directors (including the INEDs).

The attendance of each Director in the capacity of a member of the

Remuneration Committee at the meetings held during the Year is as
follows:

Name of Directors

Mr. Ho Chi Shing A&
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZESAE
Dr. Ko SiET

During the Year, 10,827,000 Awarded Shares have been granted
to 45 share award grantees. All such Awarded Shares were granted
with no performance target and/or additional clawback mechanism
imposed. Vesting would take place on 31 March of each year
beginning in 2024 and ending in 2033 and shall be vested in 10
equal tranches.
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Whilst the first vesting period in March 2024 is shorter than the
general 12 months from the Adoption Date, the Board (including the
Remuneration Committee) was aware of the importance to reward
the Selected Participants in the first quarter of each calendar year,
which is the peak season of resignation in the industry. Given that (i)
the first vesting period ending on 31 March 2024 only accounts for
10% of the grant; and (ii) the grant had a mixed vesting schedule
that has 10 vesting tranches spanning evenly over till 31 March
2033, which is more than 9 years from the Date of Grant following
the adoption of the 2023 Share Award Scheme. Accordingly, the
Board (including the Remuneration Committee) was of the view that
such arrangements were appropriate, permitted under the terms of
the Share Award Scheme and aligned with the purpose of the Share
Award Scheme.

The grant of Share Awards to the members of senior management
of the Group without performance targets has been approved by
the Remuneration Committee and the Board considered that the
grant of Share Awards to these grantees aligned with the purpose of
the Share Award Scheme in recognizing the contributions by them.

The Board (including the Remuneration Committee) considered
the terms, criteria and Listing Rules applicable to the Share Award
Scheme as well as the relevant circumstances relating to the
grant, and was of the view that the granting of Share Awards to
the selected Employee Participants under such scheme served its
purpose, was fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms and
in the interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Chan
Cheong Tat and Mr. Ho Chi Shing, and an executive Director, Dr.
Ko. Mr. Chan is the chairperson of the Nomination Committee.
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The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee IRHZESWNEZEAE LB SIFETRER

include but are not limited to:

e reviewing the structure, size, composition (including the skills, o ELFFERFNEESHRE (K AR
knowledge and experience) and diversity (including but not (PIERRE - HHERER) RKEZTTE(E
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background FEETERYER - Fit - XERHBEES
or professional experience) of the Board at least annually and NEELR) X UEAEEAREEN
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the EREMREESSIELRNEBIRLHE
Board to complement the Group's corporate strategy; =

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members o  ¥EEHEEAERATELTEETSKRENA
of the Board and making recommendations to the Board on T WHERERREEFEENATRE
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; SeiEtiEs

e assessing the independence of the INEDs and reviewing o BV IERITESHB Y ML EH B
the INEDs’ annual confirmations on their independence, FATEEREB I MELNFERER
and making disclosure of its review results in the corporate E WEARACEEAMEANRELSE
governance report of the Company; BAER

e making recommendations to the Board on the appointment o FEEXEHEEZTEREE(LERETE
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for NRASEITHAER) WETTENES SR
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive of Mgz &
the Group; and

e reviewing the Board diversity policy periodically and making ¢ EHRSNEESZTBELEEREAD
disclosure of the policy or a summary of the policy in the A RERMEANEL BRI BRUEDN
corporate governance report of the Company annually. #EE o

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held and, RAEE @ RHZESCBH— X 2Z @ (HF

amongst other matters, (i) reviewed the structure, size, composition ~ B3&)()RiTEE= S EE  HE AR EZE

and diversity of the Board; (i) assessed the independence of the 1 : (i)FE(E B IFATEZ B © KNtk

INEDs; and (jii) reviewed and made recommendation to the Board FES&R2023F9H 15HETHRERAF RS

on the re-appointment of the retiring Directors at the AGM held on B EERESEW LIRS -

15 September 2023.

The attendance of each Director in the capacity of a member of the RAEE - KEZURLEEERESNEES

Nomination Committee at the meeting held during the Year is as & 2 s28%a0~ :

follows:

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meeting
Name of Directors HERE, EBRE
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZESLAE 11
Mr. Ho Chi Shing AT 11
Dr. Ko SiET 11
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Nomination Policy

Nomination Procedures

(1)  The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a
meeting, and invite nominations of candidates from Board
members (if any), for consideration by the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee may also nominate
candidates for its consideration.

(2) In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such individual and make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.

(3) In the context of re-appointment of any existing member(s)
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation, for the proposed candidates to stand for re-
election at a general meeting.

(4)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a
general meeting.

Shareholders may also nominate a person to stand for election as
a Director at a general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association and applicable laws and regulations. The procedures for
such proposal are posted on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Selection Criteria

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider
a variety of factors including without limitation the following in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@)  reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the E&M
engineering industry and other relevant sectors;

(0 commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and
attention to the Company’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and experience;

(e) the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

RBEHFR
WEEEF

M

REZEBENWEACTHEH - WHAS
FeNERENREA(MB)HREEEE
EEE - REBEZRBGNARAREARE

HNEMEZNESSREANTD 12
FEBQRUABMALTETRINERS
L WREER  HEFSFSNILE -

REHREESSEMREXEMS @ 12
2R EeARREFRHESTEEERFEL
R BERREAUTRBERAES LEE
B o

EEeEURARNEBREAERRAS
SBNEEL - FARKBRERE -

BRAIRIBABE R AR SERHER KR IR
BRRE LIRE—RATHRES - ARALLEE
HHORE P IR BE S P AR R R AR A T/

BERE
RREZEEEMEREREANMAETSAENZ(E
ETMEESRAKEFLERN  REEREEE
BZERRFGERREANSELE - 2FE(E
TRR)ATRIA :

(a)

B

MHE TIRITE N E M AAREE AL -

AR AR RNERBRA R - ik
REE

ExgR7ENZTE  BRETRIM
Bl Fil - MERHBEER  EXLER
TRHE ~ AR ER -

BRENBHIFERRE - WHARFH
RIEHREARER -

BEBZRERDE 2024FFH

i

61



62

(f)  compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an
INED; and

(90 any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions as set out in code provision of the CG Code,
which include:

e developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

*  reviewing and monitoring the Company'’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

* reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years with effect from 18
September 2022. Each of the INEDs and the non-executive Director
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on 18 September 2022.

None of the Directors has a service contract or letter of appointment
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association. At each
AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The
Directors to retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to
obtain the number required) any Director who wishes to retire and
not to offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further Directors so
to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment and so that as between persons
who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day,
those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot.

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his/her appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographies
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report for the
Year by band is set out below:

N s E (L8 TR

Remuneration band (in HK$)

1,000,001 to 1,500,000
1,500,001 to 2,000,000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was engaged as
the Group’s independent auditor.

1,000,001% 1,500,000
1,500,001%2,000,000
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The remuneration paid/payable to Deloitte for audit and non-audit
services in respect of the Year is set out below:

RAEE - phE RIERARBON, N2
MBS T -

Fee paid/payable

Services B ENER

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services — Annual audit EET RS — FEER 750
Non-audit services IEEET RS

— Tax services fee — RIS B 60

— Interim review —HHAZE R 150

Total st 960

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, Deloitte has stated in the independent auditor’s report
its reporting responsibilities on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that
the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems. The Board oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems. The Board
acknowledges that such risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risks
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Group has established an enterprise risk management
policy in order to provide sound and effective risk management.
This sets out a framework for the identification, analysis, evaluation,
treatment, monitoring and reporting of the Group’s key risks,
with a view to supporting the achievement of the Group’s overall
strategic objectives. The Company does not have an internal audit
department. The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and currently takes the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group’s business. The need for an internal
audit function will be reviewed from time to time.
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In view of the Group'’s business and scale of operations, and in order
to adopt the most cost-effective method of conducting periodic
reviews of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems, the Board has engaged an independent consultant firm
to execute the internal audit function. Independent consultant
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and financial reporting procedures, systems
and control for the Year. The report issued by the independent
consultant firm was reviewed by the Audit Committee and the
Board and no major issue was raised for improvement.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group covering all material controls, including
financial, operational, strategic and compliance controls and has
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting functions. The Board considers
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are adequate and effective. The Board expects that a review of the
risk management and internal control systems will be performed
annually.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information
should be announced promptly when it is the subject of a decision.
The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information are as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by
the SFC in June 2012;

e the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and the Company’s website;

e the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

e the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so
that only the executive Directors, the Company Secretary and
the chief financial officer of the Company are authorised to
communicate with parties outside the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheng Chi Wai (“Mr. Cheng”).
Details of the biography of Mr. Cheng are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

Mr. Cheng has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

All members of the Board can have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The appointment and removal of the
Company Secretary has been/will be subject to the Board's approval.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are welcome to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at Shareholders’ meeting. Proposals may be sent to the
Board or the Company Secretary by written requisition. Shareholders
who wish to make proposals or move a resolution may, however,
convene an extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
EGM"” set out below.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the "Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making proposals or
moving a resolution at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholder(s) who wish(es) to convene an EGM for the
purpose of making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM
must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned (the “Requisitionist(s)”) at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The Requisition must state clearly the name(s) of the Requisitionist(s)

concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the Company, the reason(s)
to convene an EGM and the proposed agenda.
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The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and
shareholding of the Requisitionist(s) will be verified with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. If the Requisition
is found to be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene an EGM and/or include the proposal(s)
made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Requisitionist(s) at the
EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Requisitionist(s) will be advised of the outcome and accordingly,
the Board or the Company Secretary will not call for an EGM nor
include the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the
Requisitionist(s) at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board or
the Company Secretary fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the
Requisitionist(s) himself/herself/themselves may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board or the Company Secretary to
convene the EGM shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
or their notification of change of correspondence address or their
dividend/distribution instructions to the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by post to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Unit A, 19/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Company Secretary will forward
the communications relating to:

1. the matters within the Board’s purview to the executive
Directors;

2. the matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility
to the chairperson of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matter, such as suggestions, enquiries and
customer complaints to the appropriate management of the
Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy that in recommending or
declaring dividends and has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the Memorandum of

Association and Articles of Association and all applicable laws and

regulations and the factors set out below.

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the

Group when considering the declaration or recommendation of

dividends:

(@) earnings and financial condition;

(b) financial results;

(c)  cash flow situation;

(d) business conditions and strategies;

(e)  future operations requirements;

(f)  capital requirements and expenditure plans;

(9) interests of Shareholders;

(h) the general economic and political conditions and other
external factors that may have an impact on the future
business and financial performance of the Group;

(i) any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

() any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and the

conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed

and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or period:

(@) interim dividend;

(b) final dividend;

(c)  special dividend; and

(d) any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.
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Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to Shareholders’
approval. The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.
Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the
Company in accordance with the Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Association. There can be no assurance that dividends
of such amount or any amount will be declared or distributed each
year or in any year.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders communication policy
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders will have equal
and timely access to information about the Company in order to
enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner and allow them to engage actively with the Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports, circulars, AGMs and EGMs that may be
convened as well as all the published disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange.

During the Year, the Company reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders communication policy and
considered it to be effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has amended the existing Memorandum of Association
and Articles of Association and adopted the amended and restated
memorandum of association and articles of association of the
Company incorporating the amendments (the “New Memorandum
of Association and Articles of Association”) for the purposes of,
among others, bringing the Memorandum of Association and Articles
of Association in line with the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules (in particular the core standards set out in Appendix A1 thereto)
and the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands; and make other
consequential and housekeeping amendments to the Memorandum
of Association and Articles of Association.

The amendments to the Memorandum of Association and Articles
of Association and the adoption of the New Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association was approved by the
Shareholders by way of special resolution at the AGM held on 15
September 2023. Details of the amendments are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 7 August 2023 and 15 September
2023, and the circular dated 10 August 2023.

The Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association is
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B REN RS

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ACCEL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Accel
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 160,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & 3R &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RREZEE

Revenue recognition from provision of electrical and
mechanical (“E&M") engineering services

RERHEE(HE]) TRRBHKEER

We identified the revenue recognition from provision of
E&M engineering services as a key audit matter due to its
significance to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole and management'’s estimate is involved in determining
the revenue when contracts progress.

B RBREME TRERG AR H SAREXSE
B REREHGAMBHRABEBRERENRAETENERE
Wasr ey kBB ErfhET o

As set out in notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group derived its revenue from provision
of E&M engineering services over time and recognised
HK$553,537,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024.
Revenue from provision of such services is recognised over
time using input method, i.e. based on actual costs incurred
by the Group to date compared with total budgeted costs
for the projects to estimate the revenue recognised during
the year.
R E M HRARMEIRAME, - EEEWRIREBERRE
HVHERS PR (A0 TAZ AR - Iwaimmiw%1mt
FZHEFR553,537,0007 7T © KRB R4 &tiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘%ﬁﬁ M&/\m
PEEREERERR / OEER - BIRE S5EZSAIE
EEAMNERKAEIRE NEFRRERETHER LME.:JVT'?
FEMHERWE -

AREFXEE®@

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMNFSTMARREARETBR

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition
for provision of E&M engineering services included:

KA BB IR G TAR IR M0 M 24 T2 10 12 F L A
TEE:

o Obtaining an understanding on how the
management recognises the revenue from the
provision of E&M engineering services and how
the total budget costs are determined;

o THREBEWRKBRMEEIRERSEENS
FEARBIEERAEEN AR

o Agreeing the project contract sum and values of
variation orders, where applicable, to the relevant
signed contracts and the correspondence with
customers on a sample basis;

e BEBEHNSERIBESECEENER)H
MR EA D REES BT R

° Assessing the accuracy of actual total costs
incurred for the year by checking against the
supporting documents including the payment
certificates or invoices issued by the major
subcontractors, suppliers or vendors, on a sample
basis;

e TERHIZNER  HEFNERLANE
MY (BREMRERNER) AHE R FREDE
HRABRRAARR R

o Checking the total budget costs against the
underlying contracts, quotation and other
correspondence with subcontractors, suppliers or
vendors of individual projects on a sample basis;
and

e  REEMNEENEBEY HRELESBRE - H#
EANERNEAMBA - MEREEERRE
LI

. Assessing the accuracy of revenue recognised
for the year by recalculating the revenue based
on the percentage of completion of the contract
based on the input method.

s  FERBRBBAIENAEENSGHTRKE DL
Wegs - AR R W R B E R -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & & B3R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FAREEZEEm@m)

Key audit matter

RREZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMNFMARREARETER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

B RWFHAER S NEE 2R ER G

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade receivables and contract assets included:

of trade receivables and contract assets to the Group's BMBBESERFERENEE ZRETHREZFE
consolidated financial statements and the involvement of & :

subjective judgment and management estimates in assigning

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment

internal credit ratings to trade receivables and contract assets

and calculating the expected credit losses (“ECL") rates for
the impairment assessment.

B E S RUGIAERANEE ZREMER S —HERE

Understanding the procedures on how the
management assigns internal credit ratings
on trade receivables and contract assets and
calculates the ECL rates;

BER - TERNESRUGERENEEY BERENGS o THEEERBEZIRUGTEARSNEED KA
MBRAZEEXARESRRFRARENEED EAEE SRR ERREEREXRTANER
Bt ERENENEREEER((HREFEBR] X

B R E B & R E AT

As set out in notes 18 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s trade receivables and contract
assets amounting to approximately HK$70,592,000 and
HK$242,049,000, which represented approximately 13.4%
and 46.0%, respectively, of total assets of the Group as at
31 March 2024.

WERE B IERERMIT 18R 20/ - EXENE FEKFIE
K& KB EH /70,592,000 7T £ 242,049,000/ 7T * 4 B
15 BEER2024F3A31 BB EERL13.4%K%46.0% ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & 3R &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RREREE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

B2 RUFARESNEE ZRERE

As disclosed in notes 4 and 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group performs
impairment assessment on individual debtor basis to
estimate the amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables and
contract assets based on assigned internal credit ratings and
calculated ECL rates with adjustment for forward-looking
information which are estimated based on external sources
of data.

WEREMBHRRMFTI4RICHEE - ESEERERREE
EABEENRMTERBEEEREX - WHERINIEUE
FORMET RIS IE ERETTHREE - 1A R U R R E AT
BERHE - LA EZRKFIERGNEEN 2 PRPEE
BiETRE -

As disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, impairment of HK$434,000 and HK$1,951,000
in respect of trade receivables and contract assets,
respectively, were recognised as at 31 March 2024.

WAER S B R MY 5135t - 7A20244F3 A318 » HhlsE
B ZRENRIE K& {8 ERRIBIES34,000/8 7T &% 1,951,000
BT e

AREFXEE®@

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN FtOAEREARETSR

Assessing management’s basis and judgment
in assigning the internal credit rating on each
trade receivable and contract asset balance with
reference to ageing, repayment history and/or
past due status of respective debtors as at 31
March 2024; and

2ER2024F3 831 B R RUSRAEERE - B
Bt K/ S@ iR - SR ERELBHEE SR
WHRIB R & B EEHO TN EEFRNER
N &

Testing the calculations of ECL rates with
adjustment for forward-looking information by
checking to the external sources of data used in
the calculations to see if the data is appropriately
and consistently applied in the ECL model.
BBWEAETERNINBEIRAR - RIS A
M ERETRARNIARGEEERENAE - A
EEHBRESHEE B —BUtERNEREEEBE
A o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & & B3R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT &3 #Z B iR &

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & & B3R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is K. W. Yim.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEREREMEEIER

For the year ended 31 March 2024

BFE2024F3 /31 HIFFIZ
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Revenue I 5 553,537 538,492
Cost of services RRFEA AR (465,703) (443,556)
Gross profit EF 87,834 94,936
Other income, gains and losses, net HaA - W kg s FE 6 4,064 7,494

Impairment losses under expected credit ~ FEEEEEEBEX T~

loss model, net of reversal FERE - kR (706) (1,422)
Administrative expenses TR (40,670) (34,102)
Finance costs EUR DN 7 (1,722) (929)
Profit before taxation BREL AR 8 48,800 65,977
Income tax expense FrisfiA X 10 (8,381) (10,078)

Profit and total comprehensive income £ Xz F & 2 H U
for the year g 40,419 55,899

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive  FREGZEF (EE) R

income (expense) for the year Z2HEE (BIX) 458 -

attributable to:

Owners of the Company RARHEEA 40,792 56,477

Non-controlling interests FEPE R (373) (578)

40,419 55,899
HK cents HK cents
A4l Al
Earnings per share SREF 12
— Basic —%Z’X 5.10 7.06
— Diluted —#E 5.09 N/ATNE A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GE kR R

As at 31 March 2024

R2024F3H31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WERE 14 68,227 60,868
Right-of-use assets PHEEE 15 9,390 12,698
Investment property KEME 16 5,452 5,673
Payments for life insurance Y ERE 17 7,098 7,024
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 26 859 363
Financial asset at fair value through BATER ABE(RA
profit or loss (“FVTPL") FEFFABRZE DN
DRIEE 13 5,000 5,000
Finance lease receivable BhE S R GRIE 19 1,266 -
Deposits and prepayments e RIEMKRIA 18 1,462 924
98,754 92,550
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables, B 5 N E MW ERIE
deposits and prepayments e RIANFRIA 18 84,417 123,108
Finance lease receivable R EMREREINEIR 19 1,095 -
Contract assets BHEE 20 242,049 258,488
Tax recoverable A] Bl U F T 926 3,496
Pledged bank balances BIRIRIRT TSR 21 505 12,500
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEFEY 21 98,428 61,859
427,420 459,451
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and retention payables and B S ENKIE - B
accruals RE® M EFTE R 22 58,683 77,266
Contract liabilities BHEE 20 6,791 16,332
Tax payable FERTIE 2,971 566
Bank loans IRITER 23 23,594 47,550
Lease liabilities MEARE 24 7,190 4,598
99,229 146,312
Net current assets REBEETFE 328,191 313,139
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 426,945 405,689
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 5,250 8,277
Net assets EEFRE 421,695 397,412

Accel Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

o




U
I S —

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & B iR =R
As at 31 March 2024
JR2024F3H31H

2024 2023
2024F 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FATT
Capital and reserves BEARKHE

Share capital &N 25 8,108 8,000
Reserves {1 414,727 390,179

Equity attributable to owners of the 742 AEHE AFE(L S
Company 422,835 398,179
Non-controlling interests FEHEHI MR R (1,140) (767)
Total equity BRER 421,695 397,412

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 160 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
June 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Ko Lai Hung
SREEL
DIRECTOR

BE

F7TE160E MR A SRR E R 202496 528
AESESHEREETIETHUTESRER
% g

Ms. Cheung Mei Lan

REMLL
DIRECTOR

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREEIR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
B FE2024F3 531 H1FFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ALRRAARGRE

Share Non-
Share Share  Treasury award Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium shares  reserve  reserve  profits Total interests equity

R
Bx  KRBEE ERRG ; Hfefie  RERR &t  BRER EreE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
B TiEn b1 T TR TiEn T T TEn
(Note)

At 1 April 2022 R022E4R1H 8,000 195,606 - - (72580) 240276 371302 (190 3112
Profit loss) and total comprehensive 7 Bi8) R 2

income (expense) for the year ()% - - - - - %ATT 56477 (578) 55,899
Capital contribution from REFERRRLE

non-controlling shareholders = = - - - - - 1 1
Dividends recognised as distribution B2 &ATREVRE (H711)

(note 11) - - - - - (296000 (29,600) - (29,600)
At 31 March 2023 R2023%F3A318 8,000 195,606 - - (72,580) 267,153 398,179 (767) 397412
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive  FERIEE) k2 EME

income (expense) for the year (it)eg - - - - - 40792 4079 (373) 40419
Recognition of equity-settled AUERES RN AER

share-based payment (note 28) B3 (fix28) - - S 2,264 S = 2,264 = 2,264
Issuance of shares in connection with - 5£2023F f/7 BT EI% 1T

the 2023 Share Award Scheme (& RH28)

(as defined in note 28) 108 - (108) - - - - - -
Shares vested under the 2023 Share R E2023E R A EEEEE

Award Scheme GENED

(as defined in note 28) (TZRM32) - - 1 (109 - 1,083 - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution  BRAAREIFHRSE

(note 11) (RizE11) - - - - - (18400)  (18,400) - (18,400)
At31 March 2024 R04E3831R 8108 195606 @) 10 (2580 20628 4285 (1140 &16%

Note: The other reserve arose from: (i) deemed distribution arising from the  Fi#t : EMEERE - VR ABEFERER —BAR

imputed interest income on non-current interest-free advances to ARIRE(EE AWM ELIERBE 88K
a shareholder of the Company (as defined in note 1) amounting to w1l E B U A B 53K 10,190,00058 7T + (i)t
HK$10,190,000 in prior years; (ii) issuance of ordinary shares of the 2018511 A30B AR AN EMRN BB A R
Company for the reorganisation of the Group for the listing of the SFARARER EHERRM ) HARER
Company'’s ordinary shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange BHBITARAEERT72,266,0007 7T ¢ K (iii)
(as defined in note 1) completed on 30 November 2018 amounting to REKREREEN —BEARAREKREAERK
HK$72,266,000; and (i) deemed contribution arising from the waiver 9,876,000/ T °
of an amount due to a shareholder of the Company amounting to
HK$9,876,000.

80 Accel Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

P




U
B ——

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FRREAER

For the year ended 31 March 2024

B2 2024F3H31 HIFFE
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FiBT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before taxation bR A& A 48,800 65,977
Adjustments for: BTRAIE B EH A% -
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WEREETE
equipment 5,663 2,329
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 5,139 5,292
Depreciation of investment property WEYETE 221 128
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEREE 2 FlE
and equipment, net (20) (50)
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use IR AR A E WS
assets (33) =
Impairment losses under expected BHEEEERER TH
credit loss model, net of reversal SEEE - HIBREED 706 1,422
Gain on early termination of lease RAMR IR E R (32) (15)
Interest income FLEHA (765) (936)
Interest income on payments for life XSRS EWKA
insurance (74) (73)
Finance costs B RS AR 1,722 929
Share-based payments expenses LA BERES 2 AX 2,264 -
Operating cash flows before movements in &iEE S FHRINEERSTRE
working capital 63,591 75,003
Decrease in finance lease receivable B EREUGRIER 187 -
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 REAEGIR « e RFERKIA
receivables, deposits and prepayments A (L) 37,714 (47,138)
Decrease (increase) in contract assets BHEERD (M) 16,183 (92,223)
(Decrease) increase in trade and retention & S ENIE « B RES REE A
payables and accruals R )18 n (19,523) 32,530
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities EBHaECRD )M (9,541) 5,887
Cash generated from (used in) operations & Fr5(FTA)IRE 88,611 (25,941)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREEFEH (3,902) (12,837)

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING L& FE B (FAA)2FEE
ACTIVITIES 84,709 (38,778)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS eI ERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024
EE2024F3H31HIFFE

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FiBT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE - WE R&E
equipment (13,022) (3,876)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWMZE - BERKBTERIA
plant and equipment 20 50
Purchase of financial asset at FVTPL BERATEFAEZNESREE = (5,000)
Release of pledged bank balances BERIRTTAE R IR 11,995 29,307
Advances to non-controlling interests of  [AIff1 &~ FIEIERR A 2 HY £ IR
subsidiaries (1,210) =
Repayments from non-controlling interest 2K 8 —REIME A R IR AE R IE
of a subsidiary 1,199 -
Settlement received from the Vendor WE IR EE (M5E27)
(note 27) - 739
Net cash outflow on acquisition to a I — A B A RIMIR S R FEE
subsidiary (note 27) (Ff5E27) - (61,828)
Interest received BHFE 717 936
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ARREETBZFRS
ACTIVITIES (301) (39,672)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEE
New bank loans raised FEEMRITEN 10,000 57,256
Repayments of bank loans BEIRTTER (33,956) (24,247)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEARE (4,701) (5,437)
Advances from non-controlling interest R e — M B A B3R 2 B
of a subsidiary 940 -
Contributions from non-controlling REFEERBRRZEE
interests = 1
Dividends paid B E (18,400) (29,600)
Interest paid BAF A (1,722) (929)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ARmETBRRE
ACTIVITIES (47,839) (2,956)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH  B&RBRSZEWHFENCED)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 36,569 (81,406)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FINRENBEESZEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 61,859 143,265
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNRERBAESEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR, BRITEBRRRE
represented by bank balances and
cash 98,428 61,859
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B I Rk MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Accel Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under
the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands on 20
September 2018, and its shares have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 October 2019. The addresses of
the registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company are Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and Room A, 19/F,
TML Tower, 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong, respectively. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the ultimate controlling parties are Dr. Ko Lai Hung
("Dr. Ko”) and Ms. Cheung Mei Lan (“Ms. Cheung”, who
is the wife of Dr. Ko). The immediate and ultimate holding
company of the Company is Lightspeed Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is principally engaged in provision of electrical and
mechanical ("E&M") engineering services typically involving
supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation
and air-conditioning systems.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollar (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(BB HZHI) - GLOETTIT)
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FOR20BRIBERSHE R ANE(KEET)
FMKIAEREHEEREBRARRE
1D B2019F 10 B 18 AN B BB &
SHRAERARI (B Fth £/ - K
RAEEMPEERETELEEWEIFIA
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands & & 7 #7 7 2588 B IR 3R TMLE %5
191BAZE - KRRIEERR @ ZRERA
TASREEL((SELT]) REREHZT
([FBxzx] aELZEF) ARFNE
B R B AYERR 2 5] ALightspeed Limited
B RUEABEZHS((RBEZHEE])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5S B #§ R R M5 E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

/R 3 L N S = T =)
(B AR5 » HLETIR)

/L2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on 1 April 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October  Insurance Contracts
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Except as described below, the application of the other new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Accel Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

o

BB
B |) &

~

=]
FAZREE 3 4 A S MO 3 5T B B ARG
Fe AR H S

RAFEE  AEEEXERHE B
ARE([BERAETMAE ) BEM2R2023F
AR BFE 2 FE MR ER THE
FIBAYBHREER R EER] - MREER
AYHWmE

BRI REERE7 RBAY

S (BHE2020F 108

202252 AEES

BREERE 1757

B3

BESEREST  SitEE TR
BEIA

BESERFE HE-RFELENEER
BEIA ﬁﬁﬁ@am LETIE

BREGHENF 1Y BERRERE—HE_RA
EHEN A
BREREAEIRR SHPCRZKE
BEHBRSER
EBREFR
EHEN

BR NPT &SN - MAFE B EAIE]
MBI BRM B ME E L EHAKE
RAFERBEFENHBEAR LKA
R/ RGEMERRABRBEEEABRE

K .



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #8 $R R 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.
If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure
material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-
step materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance but has affected the disclosure of the
Group’s accounting policies set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5S B #§ R R M5 E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements?
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

([ L3 £ 23AHON » 49 1 SEE 5] )
(PRFA B a3V I ABILLN )

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEMBRREREEREKX

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BETEERER

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 3.1 REMBHRREREE
financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been RAEUBBRERIIBBEESSFMAE
prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by BB BT HERELARR - SR
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the RUTEIIEMEME - MBBERSE
consolidated financial statements, information is BEeFETZAFLELRIRT -
considered material if such information is reasonably BIEBERERAER « ItHh - 76
expected to influence decisions made by primary users. In MBmEEHBHRAES LRI R
addition, the consolidated financial statements includes EE RGN ERBER IS -

applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 ERSTEERER

Basis of consolidation O EE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate FREMBRERBERNARRAQTN

the financial statements of the Company and entities T HI R B B R E B A B A B R

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is ® o MARREFE T ERY - AEHE

achieved when the Company: YESIHE -

e has power over the investee; o AIHREBRITERES

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from e RHBHEEFEEHREG MR

its involvement with the investee; and S ARESIERRR : &

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. o  BENTRERHNUFEHM
-

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an WMEFE RSB Lt =181 HFE

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there =7 BIESUA LHBREE - K&

are changes to one or more of the three elements of EgsiTaER TR EHR -

control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B IS8R R i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

/ 2 T
b 2 & 2 E
NZITH A 7

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5S B #§ R R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong do//ars un/ess otherwise md/cated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEMBBEARUNEEREX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SHBERER@®

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

3.2 EREHHEER®

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
Information about the Group’s accounting policies
relating to contracts with customers is provided in notes
5 and 20.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial asset at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B IS8R R i

(Expressed in Hong Kong do//ars unless otherwise indicated)

TN
bs 7/1_‘

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #8 $R R 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise /nd/cated)

A for=] e

(A= BEEEEY) + 2B T8 )

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEVBBRREFREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEHEHEER @

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EASTBERER @)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) 2T A )

Financial assets (continued) THEE#)

Classification and subsequent measurement of PRMEENPREBETE®

financial assets (continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income () BESERARFEMA
Interest income is recognised using the effective FMEWANAB R EENER
interest method for financial assets measured FEZER  MemEELR
subsequently at amortised cost. RS AT E -
Interest income is calculated by applying the FIB U AE 181 BB FI = fE A
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount R—IEeREEEEKREE
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that WERNSREE(R TR
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see RIBEREERE - iEEKA
below). For financial assets that have subsequently 1:.,\/Wfﬁmiﬁﬂ§§_ﬁﬁ_§ " A
become credit-impaired, interest income is BIRABBE T —EREHE
recognised by applying the effective interest rate TREENEEKAEAER
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from FERTFURR - HEERESR
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the BMTANEERBEMNE -
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so NBemEETBLREER
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, B BIFBIMABBNEER
interest income is recognised by applying the ETTHBEERERE RS
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount B SREENREREA
of the financial asset from the beginning of the FER BRI Z= T ARER -

reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(i)  Financial asset at FVTPL (il EAFEFABENEHEE
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for WA E IR AR SIE AT
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or Bt AR E2EKERIEE S
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. BRAFEFAEMEE W

ENERNEREETIEAF
Bt AB&RETE o

Financial asset at FVTPL is measured at fair value BEATEFABENCMEE
at the end of each reporting period, with any BEERERRN AT EFEZ -
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or EARAFE W EJZEE?EE’\TE/\
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or FHER o RIBRERMH I

loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on }EﬂE/\%%ﬁT@%?ﬁiﬁﬂﬁé%ﬁ
the financial asset and is included in the “other B ER R ESFE - WEEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B IS8R R i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9")

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL"”) on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, refundable rental
deposits, amounts due from non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries, finance lease receivable, pledged bank
balances and bank balances) and other item (i.e. contract
assets) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition in which case, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #8 $R R 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument and contract assets as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument and contract assets as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

The Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument or a contract asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument and the contract asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
or a contract asset is determined to have low credit
risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument or a contract asset
to have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5S B #§ R R M5 E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9") (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

The Group considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset or a contract asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEMBBEARUNEEREX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SHBERER@®

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (continued)

3.2 EREHHEER®
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TTRERHE) ZRE @)

A financial asset or a contract asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset or a
contract asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the (a)
counterparty;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due (b)
event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or (c)

contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the counterparty will (d)
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B IS8R R i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9") (continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset or a contract
asset when there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Accel Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024
O

7

=)

BTN

(&)

BRBREREEREKR
BRE

3.2 EXSHEEER @

ST A E)

THEE#)
CRIEEREMBEE (BRES
B R EERESRe M T A
([BBMBREERFEIN|)E
ITRERHS) 2 RE@E)
EEERBRRPUTHERENS
PR 24 1 42 T ] 3R 0B ) RS AT AR 1A -
FEBEHMERLREERANE
B o AEAM R EE T R o

EMEEBENTERRZOME 2
HIRAR(AFRERNFNEBRIZE)
FERIRBMES - BHOBIERIED
BRKRTDERNE L BUR MATEIEE R
Al o TREMEE BB A fEET RBR AT
EREENRRNSBEESINERE
MEEMERBERINESEE -

— RS - EREEEEATEER
BANBIRNFE A NBS R R EA
EEIR AR SR 2 I8
24 RN SRRSO B
KA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #8 $R R 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise /nd/cated)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEVBBRREFREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEHEHEER @

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

3.2 EASTHERER @

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables, finance lease receivable and contract
assets where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B IS8R R i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and retention
payables, amount due to a non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary and bank loans) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #8 $R R 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

=)

BB RFEREERE KX
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3.2 EREHHEER®

(continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B IS8R R i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEVBBRREFREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEBERE

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

3.2 EASTHERER @

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B IS8R R i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &LEH
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
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(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance
lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and investment property
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and investment property
to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and investment property
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #8 $R R 5T

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and investment property
(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B IS8R R i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and investment property
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRSs require or permit the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages, salaries and annual leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #8 $R R 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEMBBEARUNEEREX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SHBERER@®

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

3.2 EASTHERER @

(continued)

Retirement benefits costs (continued)

For long service payment (“LSP”) obligation, the
Group accounts for the employer Mandatory Provident
Fund ("MPF") contributions expected to be offset
as a deemed employee contribution towards the LSP
obligation in terms of paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19
"Employee Benefits” and it is measure on a net basis.
The estimated amount of future benefit is determined
after deducting the negative service cost arising from
the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees,
which are deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.
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Share-based payments LR BERIT

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions LAt m A E LA R (7 BEEHIT
X5

Shares granted to employees KT B8 mRRG:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share award reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share award reserve.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share award reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

A 4
e 5 Az

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R L A2 AHON » #4910 S5 =)
(BEAB Gt HY) * IGAB 705170 )

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %%
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

7

=)

BRBREREEREKR
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3.2 EREHHEER®

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Payments for life insurance

Payments for life insurance was stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
adjusted for interest income and service charges, less
impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B IS8R R i

(Expressed in Hong Kong do//a;s unless otherwise indicated)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and key sources of estimation uncertainty at end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Revenue recognition from provision of E&M
engineering services

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of E&M
engineering services according to the management’s
estimation of the total outcome of the project as well as the
progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation measured based on input method, i.e. based
on actual costs incurred by the Group to date compared
with total budgeted costs for the projects to estimate the
revenue recognised during the year. Notwithstanding that
the management reviews and revises the estimates of both
contract revenue and costs for the E&M engineering services
as the contract progresses, the actual outcome of the contract
in terms of its total revenue and costs may be higher or lower
than the estimates and this will affect the revenue and profit
recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
recognised revenue amounted to HK$553,537,000 (2023:
HK$538,492,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5S B #§ R R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets

The management of the Group performs impairment
assessment on individual debtor basis to estimate the amount
of lifetime ECL of trade receivables and contract assets based
on assigned internal credit ratings and calculated ECL rates
with adjustment for forward-looking information which are
estimated based on external sources of data. The forward-
looking information are market predications of certain key
Hong Kong economy indicators including gross domestic
products, unemployment rate, non-performing loans ratio
and Hong Kong money supply M2. At every reporting date,
the internal credit rating are reassessed and changes in the
external sources of data are considered in estimation of
impairment of trade receivables and contract assets.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL is disclosed in note 35.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets were HK$70,592,000
(2023: HK$104,695,000), and HK$242,049,000 (2023:
HK$258,488,000), respectively, including allowance of credit
losses for the Group’s trade receivables of HK$434,000
(2023: HK$631,000) and the Group's contract assets of
HK$1,951,000 (2023: HK$1,695,000).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue of the Group arose from provision of E&M
engineering services typically rendered in Hong Kong under
long-term contracts and were recognised over time during the
year.

The Group provides E&M engineering services to customers
which are mainly landlords, construction companies and
contractors in Hong Kong private sector. All the Group's
provision of E&M Engineering services is made directly with
the customers.

The Group’s contracts are mainly at fixed-price and payments
are made to the Group over the provision of E&M engineering
services once such services are performed and certified by
architects, surveyors or other representatives appointed by the
customers.

The Group may require certain customers to make advance
payments during the provision of E&M engineering services,
when the Group receives the advance payments before
provision of E&M engineering services, this will give rise to
contract liabilities, until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of such advances.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same
contract, is recognised over the period in which the provision
of E&M engineering services are performed representing the
Group’s right to consideration for the services performed
because the rights are conditioned on the relevant certification
by architects, surveyors or other representatives appointed by
the customers.

The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional upon the Group's services
certified by architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B IS8R R i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The Group's contracts with customers normally require it to
perform the obligations (including, amongst others, primarily
rectification of defects identified) under the contracts during
the defects liability period generally for 12 to 24 months after
issuance of practical completion certificates by customers.
The defect liability period serves as an assurance that the
construction services performed comply with agreed-upon
specifications and such assurance cannot be purchased
separately. 5% to 10% of each interim payment from the
customers is usually withheld by the customers as retention
receivables (as included in the Group’s contract assets) in
which 50% of the retention receivable is transferred to the
trade receivables for collection upon issuance of practical
completion certificates, and the remaining 50% of the
retention receivable is transferred to the trade receivables for
collection upon expiry of the defects liability period set out in
the relevant contracts.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) in respect of
provision of E&M engineering services as at 31 March 2024
amounting to HK$926,159,000 (2023: HK$950,586,000)
which is expected to be recognised as revenue in the following
years:
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2024 2023

20245 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHETT

Within one year —&FR 478,504 608,969
More than one year but not —F LA HERBBARF

more than two years 395,517 341,617

More than two years BB 52,138 =

926,159 950,586

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, regularly review revenue recognised
and costs incurred for the provision of E&M engineering
services and, therefore, considered the Group has only one
single reporting and operating segment under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MicE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (continued)

All the Group's revenue was earned from customers located in
Hong Kong and all its non-current assets (other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets) are situated in Hong
Kong.

Revenue from customers for the year contributing over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

5.

Wiz R 2 2B E R

TERERFENEENRZER
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AEENRMBEREHKRBULRBENE
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Customer A ZPA
Customer B EFB
Customer C ®PFC
Customer D ZFD
Customer E ZFE
Customer F EPF

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
111,894 N/ATNE
58,433 N/ATNE
67,377 N/ATNE
55,048 N/ATNE

N/ATE A 87,159
N/ATE A 64,961

The revenue from the above customers marked with not
applicable (“N/A") represents their revenue contributions to
the Group were less than 10% of the Group's revenue in the
relevant year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

/R O3 22 g 4 L N St = T == )
(BE= B » BTN )

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 6. H{hlk A - WE B EEE8E

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest income LB U A 765 936
Government grants (Note) BT Bh (B =E) - 5,624
Interest income on payments for life XNEREHFEWA
insurance 74 73
Gain on disposal of property, plant and H&E%E « BE M &E 2 FRES
equipment, net 20 50
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use £ 1FFEREFAREEERE
assets 33 -
Rental income from investment property & ¥ S WA 156 246
Gain on early termination of lease IR ERE RN 32 15
Others Hifb 2,984 550
4,064 7,494
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognised MizE : REE2023F3A31BIEFE  A&EE
Coronavirus disease 19-related subsidies under Employment BREBRTRERRGE 2|1 N E
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong Government of 201978 AR A A A BRI AL 45,624,000
HK$5,624,000. HBIT °
FINANCE COSTS 7. BB
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest on bank loans IRITEFFE 1,308 636
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEHNE 414 291
Others Hith - 2
1,722 929

BREEEZRERAT 2024FF8H 113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MicE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(S L3 £ 23 pH 4 LAy [N] SHE [ =)
(FFAB Y+ FHABITSNTN )

/L2

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. KRFHAIER

2024 2023
20245 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRT FET

Profit before taxation has been arrived  BRF{ BTG F T30k (K2 ) A N & IBE

at after charging (crediting): R
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BELREBITE

equipment 5,663 2,329
Depreciation of investment property WEMENE 221 128
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 5,139 5,292

(Reversal of) allowance for impairment  JE{EE 18 (B@ ) B (FE) -
losses (Note):

— Trade receivables — B S EWFIE (197) -
- Contract assets —EHEE 256 127
— Other receivables — H At e A 647 1,295
Auditor's remuneration et Gk 750 750
Gross rental income from investment &Y EAF S UA
property (156) (246)
Less: direct operating expenses incurred & : FEFNEERSMAZIZEYZE
for investment property that EEZERLERY
generated rental income during
the year 12 133
(144) (113)

Staff costs (including the remuneration 8 TN (BIEMI FFORTIREA T E
of the directors of the Company as EHM)
disclosed as note 9):

— Salaries and allowances and — % & KR A RBIBIEA
discretionary bonus 88,902 82,316
— Retirement benefit scheme — R IRAE R FT B 5K
contributions 2,918 2,730
— Share-based payments expenses — AR BEBR A 2 X 2,264 -
Total staff costs B T A48 94,084 85,046
Donations B 3,667 1,609
Note: Details of impairment assessment for the years ended 31 March Mk : B = 20244 20233 A31HIEFEH
2024 and 2023 are set out in note 35. BT A IBEAMRE3S -
In addition to the employee benefits expenses presented br LilE B RRAAIIN - REETRES
above, the Group also provides other non-monetary benefits REEMIFEEEN(EE) - BiZE20245E
(accommodation) to director. During the year ended 31 March SA3MHILEFE  HEZEIEEKREFIESR
2024, depreciation of right-of-use assets in relation to these H{E A EE EITE 51,891,000/8 (2023
non-monetary benefits amounted to HK$1,891,000 (2023: F 1 946,000/ 7T) °

HK$946,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

/A T ~=— 20 o
(= H71855)

.
2 A S 8l <)
LA BTSN )

N

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 9. EX  RETHAERESHH
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS oA
Directors’ emoluments and chief executive’s EEMERESTHRAEME

emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to the directors and chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2024

W -

BZE2024F3831ALEE

Other emoluments

XN FARARAEZRITRAERNMESFE

Hit <
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonus contributions Total
&R BHRERN
e HinEes BigTEA B8 wst
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TER TEx TER TEx
Executive directors; HOEE:
Dr. Ko SEL - 4,260 380 18 4,658
Ms. Cheung b3 - 1,380 230 18 1,628
Non-executive director; FHTES:
Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit e (Bl
("Mr. CK Ko", son of fE] SELE
Dr. Ko and Ms. Cheung) Ktz 5RT) 360 - - - 360
Independent non-executive BV IFHITEE -
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat BE#ERE 180 - - - 180
Ms. Tse Ka Wing HEAXT 180 - - - 180
Mr. Ho Chi Shing AIEHEE 180 - - - 180
900 5,640 610 36 7,186
20245 F 3§

BREEEZERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MicE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

N SHE = T == )
A i LB TS )

BE  BRESTHRAEREEM
CAC )
EEMERESTHAEM S @

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9.
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ emoluments and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

HZE2023F3A31HILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Other emoluments
Hifie
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonus  contributions
I {VER)
e HfERE BEIEAL BESA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL T5T T
Executive directors; HOIEE:
Dr. Ko SEL - 3,270 380 18 3,668
Ms. Cheung wT - 1,380 230 18 1,628
Non-executive director; FHITES:
Mr. CK Ko mEREE 360 - = = 360
Independent non-executive BV IFHITESE :
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat BREELE 180 - - - 180
Ms. Tse Ka Wing HEART 180 - - - 180
Mr. Ho Chi Shing EHEE 180 = S = 180
900 4,650 610 36 6,196

116
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The emoluments of the above executive directors of the
Company were paid for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Group whereas
the emoluments of the above non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors of the Company were
paid for their services as directors of the Company during the
year. Besides, the above executive directors of the Company
are entitled to bonus payments which are determined with
reference to individual performance of the relevant directors.

Dr. Ko is also the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“Chief Executive”) and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

None of the directors of the Company nor the Chief Executive
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
include 2 (2023: 2) directors of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. Details of the emoluments
of the remaining 3 (2023: 3) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

/I ) A2 o LA | o —
(B HEHE) - HL0E

EEX - BRETHRAERESEM
cAC )

EEME

KEE  KEBOWRAERSFHALTEIE
2%(2023%F 1 2B)ANNRES - HBEFHF
BHEHR EX o 88 T35 (2023F : 38) &=
HFIA TS BT

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT
Employees =]

— Salaries and allowances — e KOERL 2,731 2,758
— Discretionary bonus (Note) —BIBTEAL (B 5E) 761 491
— Share-based payment expenses — AR BEE S N 2 X 251 -

— Retirement benefit scheme — R IREFIFT B R
contributions 54 54
3,797 3,303

Note: The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to
individual performance of the employees and approved by the
management of the Group.

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid employees
were within the following bands:

M BBEAL DR 2 EREEMEARREEL
HASEEEEE -

BRI E=FMEENMEEENT -

2024 2023

20245 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 1,500,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 #7T.%2,000,0007 7T 1 —

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company, Chief Executive nor the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

AEBYBAEFAARAES HHTH
ABH AL ERHIMA L HEMBE(E
AIMAREE R IAR K B1R 7 2R KB
Ba(E -

BEEZRERAT 2024FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MicE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(=

10.

> / 1IN SHE = Ty == )
FERYN I LA 8T 81 )

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNER

10. FTSBIREX

2024
20245

PIVE
20234
HK$'000
FETT

HK$’000
FTET

— Current year —AREFE 8,856 10,107
— Under (over) provision in previous — B FERENE(BRERE)

years 21 (29)

— Deferred tax (note 26) — EFERIE (MI7E26) (496) -

8,381 10,078

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. The two-tiered
profits tax rates regime was applicable to Chit Tat Electrical
Engineering Limited (“Chit Tat”, a wholly-owned subsidiary)
for current and prior year. Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits
Tax of Chit Tat is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million for current
and prior year.

Accel Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

o

REBEFENSHMMRS  GEREHEER
B28 8B M A5 128.25% B R B
IR - RS2 B &8 THEMRIZ16.5%
BERGMBIR - TREEFEHRAEHER
ZEBER OGN KEEIL165% 25—
MEGHRHIE - RAFEIBEFE -
SHMAEANEERETEBERAT
(T{EE] - —H2EMBAR) - Fit - #
EAFERBEFENEBNGHIRE
2AEB T A BRBUEFR8.25% T
xR PAKBE2A BB TR ERBUE N
1£16.5% R BABIA -



10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5S B #§ R R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars un/ess otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

= Gh ) o N SHe = == )
(5 H S » LB THIR)

10. FrBFiRE X @
RAFENESHAS TRl sBs M E
2 EW SR ARG G FIE BRI

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Profit before taxation BRI 48,800 65,977
Tax charge at the applicable income tax %@ A TS E16.5%
rate at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) (2023%F : 16.5% )T EMFHIE
x 8,052 10,886
Tax effect of expenses not deductible R F0FFI ST T TG R/ 2
for tax purpose 855 610
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBIUIRARBLIE
tax purpose (131) (1,009)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR IS E B S 2 157 153
Utilisation of taxes losses not previously BB Lt B R FERR BN TR 75 B8
recognised (145) =
Tax effect of tax deductions for research #f1%% s HFEIE R R VTR S 22
and development expenditures (220) (350)
Under (over) provision in previous years 81 F /€ B#T 2 (HBFEEME) 21 (29)
Income tax at concessionary rate REBEBERTENEH (180) (183)
Others HAtb (28) =
Income tax expense for the year RER PGB 8,381 10,078

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$4,161,000 (2023: HK$1,009,000)
available for offset against future profits. Tax losses of
HK$3,299,000 (2023: nil) have been recognised as deferred
tax assets. The remaining tax losses of HK$862,000 (2023:
HK$1,009,000) have not been recognised as deferred tax assets
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

RBEHAR AEBBERSAHIEEISR
#74,161,0007% 7T (20234 : 1,009,000/5
TOAETT) - AR AR T o BIEESE
3,299,000/ 7T (20234 : ) B HER AIE
IR EE o R A& A 2R A 7] 78
B - TR #4 B4 TE 8548 862,000 7% T (2023
£ : 1,009,000/ 7T ) I AR HER AR TR IE
BE - FTEEBEHERPEE -

BEBERERLT 2024FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MicE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(A L3 2 23-gH G N R Ty =)
(=B85 - L ETTIR)

11. DIVIDENDS 1. BE

2024 2023
20245 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Dividends for ordinary shareholders FARER AP IREIARE) LR R
of the Company recognised as AR
distribution during the year:
- 2023 final dividend: HK1.6 cents per  — 2023F R HAAL 8« EAX1.65511

share (2023: 2022 final dividend: (2023%F : 2022F REARRE. -
HK2.1 cents per share) B2 17800) 12,800 16,800
- 2024 interim dividend: HK0.7 cents ~ — 2024FFHARR 8. : FAR0.7754L
per share (2023: 2023 interim (20234 : 2023F HEIAR S ¢
dividend: HK1.6 cents per share) Bh1.68L) 5,600 12,800
18,400 29,600
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend R ERERE - ARRESEERME
of HK1.3 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year ended F2024F3A3BIEFEIRNRBRES
31 March 2024, in an aggregate amount of HK$10,541,000 AR EBAR1 3L - BSFE /10,541,000
has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is T WAERFAR R FE B R R EF A
subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company in the gL -

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5S B #§ R R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong do//ars un/ess otherwise /nd/cated)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Earnings for the purpose of basicand AR
diluted earnings per share (profit for
the year attributable to owners of the

Company)

ikl

A_,

ﬁy , 4]

12. BRER

ARRHEBEANBEERERLEERRT
REBATEIEAE

2024
20245

PIVE
20234
HK$'000
FBTT

HK$°000
FTERT

HEREARE SR
BN (KRR EHEE ARIEAFE

40,792 56,477

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic

FHHA

AR ESRERBFNE

Number of
shares
KB
‘000

TH%

Number of
shares

BRHEE

"000
TR

SR HNHE

earnings per share 800,001 800,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary $ NEIRITERRR 1 SRR A A e s

shares in respect of outstanding BELERNTE

share awards of the Company 787 N/A 36 A
Weighted average number of ordinary AR 51 & &A% 8 2 5 60 hE 19

shares for the purpose of diluted TR e

earnings per share 800,788 N/A AN A
No diluted earnings per share is presented for prior year as BRI B E ZHITBEER G - Bt &

there was no potential dilutive share in issue.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL

At 31 March 2024, the balance represents a project loan to
finance a construction project of a construction company in
Hong Kong. The loan bears interest equivalent to 4.8% per
annum and the principal and interest are repayable in January
to February 2025. Besides, the Group is also entitled to 52%
of the profit from the construction project, with a minimum
profit margin of 5% guaranteed by the construction company.

13.

2 E—FENESREERF -

BAVEFAEZCEREE
MR2024F3A318 @ £HEATE—HE
HERFNELRBEREMNHEEER - %
ERNERNERHBA8% » Ae MFBEAERN
2025F1BE2 AEE - Wi KEBITA
S EETR B B FIM52% « WAZEE
RNEMRBREFEES% ©

EZERAERDT  2024F 55K
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o
-

121



/ \
 \

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MicE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BEKRZE
Furniture, Motor
Carpark Leasehold fixtures and vehicles
Property spaces improvements  equipment and yacht Total
HE &R %E
I XA EL k& REREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT TEL BT BT THT
cosT A
At 1 April 2022 72022564 A18 - 2,300 257 3,022 1,494 7,073
Additions NE = = 3,074 802 - 3,876
Acquired on acquisition of ~ EEE—RIHE LA
a subsidiary (note 27) G EIY) 53,900 2,127 = = = 56,027
Disposals HE - - - = (212) 212)
At 31 March 2023 1202343 A431H 53,900 4,427 3,331 3,824 1,282 66,764
Additions RE = = 823 199 12,000 13,022
Disposals HE = = = = (275) (275)
At 31 March 2024 20245374310 53,900 4,427 4,154 4,023 13,007 79,511
DEPRECIATION ik 3
At 1 April 2022 7202244 A18 - 277 23 1,972 1,307 3,779
Provided for the year REFEE 1,194 127 342 479 187 2,329
Eliminated upon disposals &k 4 = = = = (212) (212)
At 31 March 2023 72202343 A31H 1,19 404 565 2,451 1,282 5,896
Provided for the year TEERAE 2,048 160 1,836 487 1,132 5,663
Eliminated upon disposals & % = = = = (275) (275)
At 31 March 2024 12024534318 3242 564 2,401 2,938 2,139 11,284
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2024 2024437310 50,658 3,863 1,753 1,085 10,868 68,227
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3A31H 52,706 4,023 2,766 1,373 - 60,868
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14.

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 48

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise /ndlcated)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Property 3%
Carpark spaces 3%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-30%
Motor vehicles and yacht 10%-30%

The Group's a carpark space and an office premise (2023: two
carpark spaces and an office premise) are situated in Hong
Kong and are pledged to secure bank loans (note 23).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The tenure of the Group’s lease arrangements for renting
carpark space, office premises, warehouses, accommodation
and motor vehicles is mainly from two to five years.

The lease arrangements for renting carpark space, office
premises and warehouses usually allow early termination for
the Group’s giving one-month prior notice after 12 months
from the commencement of the leases, otherwise, penalties,
equivalent to one-month lease payment, is necessary. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In respect of the lease arrangements for renting motor
vehicles, the Group has options to purchase the motor vehicles
for nominal amounts at the end of the leases and there is no
early termination options.

BRI RMEE

= A 4 L 8] SH o= BT o=
(2R =¥ HHYN IABICY! 7N

/L

14. Y%  BEREE@

15.

it - BERREAESERUTE
FRTE

L 3%

{FEAL 3%

THEMERE FAEHN

R HERRE 20%-30%

YRE R B 10%-30%
AEBN—EAFBEME—BARAZTWE

(2023%F : MEAFENE—EARAE
E)EERE - UWRERTERERIR (M
23) °

EREEE

AEEEREEML RAEYE  BE -
EEMAENHERHFHIEANER
qEO

ﬁ%ﬁ$ﬁ WMAEMERRENHEER
EEAHAKRERNEERR12EA &S

TEABAMEAMLLAE - TRFHN

HER—EARENRNE R - BEEY

ﬁﬁTTﬁﬁ%@mﬁr% REEE
BREBELEE SN ATRTHHR -

RERAENEEREME - AEEA#E
REMERFIZEESRBEE R
RETERIR LS -

SEEEEZERERAT  2024F 53R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MicE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 15. FHAEEEm@m

124

The Group's right-of-use assets in respect of lease
arrangements for renting carpark space, office premises,
warehouses, accommodation and motor vehicles at the end of
reporting period are as follows:

AEERNRERRABAREEL BAE
ME - BE - EBERAENEERHMS
HEREEENT

Carpark Office Motor
space premises  Warehouses Accommodation vehicles Total
BEL  BAENE : 4 RE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR TEL TAT TEL THr
Asat31March 2024 H202453A318
Carrying amount REE 69 2,382 2,146 2,837 1,956 9,390
Asat31March 2023 R202353A31H
Carrying amount FEE 108 1,495 4,958 4,728 1,409 12,698
For the year ended BZ2024F3831R
31 March 2024 IR:3
Depreciation charge HEER 80 1,032 1,282 1,891 854 5,139
For the year ended #Z2023F3A8318
31 March 2023 JIR:3
Depreciation charge FEER 85 2,368 1,191 946 702 5,292

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets (mainly
motor vehicles) at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life. Other
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

During the year, the Group had total cash outflows for leases
amounting to HK$5,115,000 (2023: HK$5,627,000).

During the year, the Group had additions to right-of-use assets
amounting to HK$4,586,000 (2023: HK$15,926,000).

In addition, the Group’s lease liabilities of HK$12,440,000
(2023: HK$12,875,000) are recognised with related right-
of-use assets of HK$9,390,000 (2023: HK$12,698,000) as
at 31 March 2024. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessors. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

N = = RN Ry
(PEA B Lol IABITSI

16. REYHE

HK$'000
TAT

cosT B
At 1 April 2022

MR2022F4A1H _

Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 27) A U B — R B A RIS (BRE27) 5,801
At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 7202338318 K%2024F3A31H 5,801
DEPRECIATION e

At 1 April 2022

202294818 _

Provided for the year NG R 128
At 1 April 2023 M2023F471H 128
Provided for the year RAFERE 221
At 31 March 2024 2024563 HA31H 349
CARRYING VALUES SRMEIE

At 31 March 2024 M2024%3A318 5,452
At 31 March 2023 M202343H31H 5,673

The above investment property is depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

The Group leases out a vehicle parking space under operating
lease with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 2 years (2023: 2 years). The vehicle parking
space (2023: vehicle parking space) is pledged to secure bank
loans (note 23).

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangement, as the lease is denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contract do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

EREBEEMENHERRIRERENE -

AEBBESEHEHAHHEEMN -
SEHASNM HENVRERBE B2F
(2023F : 29 ) - HER{EEAL(2023F ¢
BB DR AERRITER (M
23) -

HEREENEEERS BN EEG
18+ Bt AR5 B 3 8 7 S 22 BEm mER b
BREk HEANTESHNBREERSE
R,/ RABANEHERRERBEEEYE
HRIRAE o
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17. PAYMENTS FOR LIFE INSURANCE

In November 2017, the Group paid premium for a life
insurance policy (the “Insurance Policy”) to insure Ms.
Cheung, a director of the Company. Under the Insurance Policy,
the beneficiary and policy holder is the Group. At inception
of the Insurance Policy, the Group paid a gross premium of
HK$6,500,000 by two instalments of HK$3,250,000 each. The
Group can terminate the Insurance Policy at any time and can
receive cash at the date of termination based on the account
value of the Insurance Policy, which is determined as the gross
premium paid with the accrued returns (as further details set
out below) after netting of the charges (including a surrender
charge if the termination of the Insurance Policy is within the
first policy year), if any, in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Insurance Policy.

The Group shall receive returns (with guaranteed minimum
return at rates of 3.75%, 3% and 2% per annum for the
first policy year, second policy year and third to tenth policy
years, respectively) during the effective period of the Insurance
Policy. The directors of the Company have no intention to
terminate the Insurance Policy within 12 months after the end
of each of the reporting periods and, therefore, the amounts
were classified as non-current assets as at 31 March 2024 and
2023.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

17. sk e

R2017F 11 A - AEERSRERE(R
B)IHRE  UABEARRESZRZLIER
# o RIBRE  SRARREFEAAER
S8 - RREFBRE  AEES>WEBH
HA3,250,0007% 7T 3% 1+ 481 # 6,500,000 7%
JC o AEE AR R IERE - WA AKRIE
AHRBRERENEFPEBRIIRSE @ %k
FEAETIRBRENERRIEEE T A
BRERE(BIENNE AREFERILRE
REIRIRER) (A ) BEFTEIR(E— 5
BEFWT) ERZMHBRE -

ANE B MR B A AR U ER 2 R (7 & (3
REFE F_RAREFERFE=EFET
EREFENRERERBRFEFNNED A
3.75% * 3% N&2%) - KRB EREENS
MEHREZ12EANKIRE - Bltze
BMN2024F 220233 A31 B EAIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSHIFHES) - 9L ETTIR)
. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 18. EZ R HMEWRE - RER
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS TR RRIR
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
HK$'000 HK$’000
FEx FHIT
Trade receivables =) e e 71,026 105,326
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (434) (631)
70,592 104,695
Other receivables HAbFEUGRIR 5,930 3,800
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (1,942) (1,295)
3,988 2,505
Refundable rental deposits (Note i) AREIFA SIS (KFE) 869 966
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUH B R BRI AR M 2 5K IR
interests of subsidiaries (Note i) (B =Fii) 1 -
Prepayments for purchase of materials BEEMEMENRBLSBE
and subcontracting fees 7,170 12,181
Prepaid expenses BRHEZ 2,533 2,965
Utilities and other deposits NEES JIEL ks 716 720
85,879 124,032
Analysed as: ST
Current assets MENEE 84,417 123,108
Non-current assets EMBNEE 1,462 924
85,879 124,032

Notes: B -

(i) Included in the refundable rental deposits as at 31 March 2024 ()  F202493A8318 @ AIREARKREE
were amounts of HK$45,000 (2023: HK$45,000), HK$20,000 D B A F & 18 1 KR 2 145,000
(2023: HK$20,000) paid to Dr. Ko and Ms. Cheung respectively. 70 (20234 : 45,0007 7T) * 20,0007 7T
The other refundable rental deposits as at 31 March 2024 and (20234 : 20,0007 7T ) K FXIE © 722024
2023 were paid to independent landlords. F 20233 A31HHEMAREIESZ

SR TFEILEE -

(i) ~ The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on @iy BIFEREER  RERIREREE -

demand.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Trade receivables represent amounts receivable for work
certified after deduction of retention money. As at 1 April
2022, the gross carrying amount of the Group’s trade
receivables was HK$60,427,000 and HK$631,000 allowance
of credit losses was made.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits for
customers. Recoverability of the amounts due from existing
customers is reviewed by the directors of the Company
regularly. The Group allows generally a credit period of 7 to
90 days (2023: 7 to 90 days) to its customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables of
the Group presented based on dates of work certified by
architects, surveyors or other representatives appointed by the
customers, that approximate to the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period.

18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MicE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

B RHEHMEWRIE -
FE 1 FRIE ()

B S RBGIERGIBRRESZERE %
BEITIEFIE - R2022F4818 » AEEH
5 EW A B IREE 560,427,000 7T
MEHREEE18%#631,000/8 7T °

BEk

REMTAHEER  ASESFHE
BEENEEERTREFNEERE -
YR ARFPFREMNAKEEEHRARRT
EETHR - AEB—METERFIE
90K (20234 : 7E90K)HZEH] -

TXARBEMRBIEETP R EMNRE
B - B2 AM Sk B A RRAZE T2 B HA(H %
S REEE) 27N A KE R Z RUTIER
BRI AT

2024 AV

20244 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

0 to 30 days 0E30K 39,957 35,751
31 to 90 days 31E90K 19,806 55,925
91 to 180 days 91£180K 2,566 7,272
Above 180 days 180 KA E 8,697 6,378
71,026 105,326
Less: Allowance of credit losses B EEEERE (434) (631)
70,592 104,695

As at 31 March 2024, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balances are debtors with aggregate gross carrying amount of
HK$11,263,000 (2023: HK$13,650,000) which are past due
90 days or more as at the reporting date and is not considered
as in default because these customers are in the process of
internal settlement procedures that the management of the
Group has acknowledged and approved the extended credit
period.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables, refundable rental deposits and amounts due from
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries are set out in note 35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5S B #§ R R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong do//ars un/ess otherwise /nd/cated)

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE

The Group entered into finance lease arrangement as a lessor
for a premise. The terms of finance lease entered into for 3.4
years during the year ended 31 March 2024. The interest rate
inherent in the lease is fixed at the contract date over the lease
term.

There was no unguaranteed residual value of leased asset and
no contingent rent arrangement that needed to be recognised
for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Finance lease receivable comprises:

19.

A_,

TEHSN - #)

MEHEREKRFIE
AREBEALBAR —EYET L REMR
EXH e BIE2024F3A31HIEFE @ &
EHREREIR A3.45F - HEBAFMREMR
EHRRAYBEET -

HZE2024F3A31HILFE  HEEET
EARAERFGER  NTEZFSEINFA
HEZHE -

Undiscounted
minimum lease
payments

AUEBRRIE

BEMAR
HK$'000
TAT

REREREARE

Within one year —FR 1,145
More than one year but not more than —F LA BT HBAMRE
two years 780
More than two years LA - 520
Gross investment in the lease HERERTE 2,445
Less: unearned finance income R AREREET A (84)
Present value of minimum lease payments SEBEENRRE 2,361
Analysed as: aRiv=1E
Current RIER 1,095
Non-current JEBNER 1,266
2,361
EEZEREMRAOT  2024FF3k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MicE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract assets as at 1
April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 amounting
to HK$166,392,000, HK$258,488,000 and HK$242,049,000
respectively, represent the Group’s rights to considerations
from customers for the provision of E&M engineering services,
which arise when: (i) the Group completed the relevant
services under such contracts but yet certified by architects,
surveyors or other representatives appointed by the customers;
and (ii) the customers withheld certain certified amounts
payable to the Group as retention money (i.e. retention
receivables) to secure the due performance of the contracts.

The Group's contract assets are analysed as follows:

20. EHNEEREE

20224818 - 20233 A31H %2024
F3A318 > AEESHNEENKREED
31 % 166,392,0007% 7T * 258,488,000/ 7T
242,049,000 7T - FEASE IR K E
TEREEmMEZEFUREARBOER  Z%
BEFRATERELE : VANEEREZS
AHTREERSERAECEPAZIN
FEEEEM - RIERM sk EARRRER - K
EERBASEEMNNE THREREES
RES(AEKRES)  UBRRZARBET
B4 -

AEBNEHNEESNWT

2024 2023

2024%F 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Provision of E&M engineering services BIRREEE 244,000 260,183
Less: Allowance of credit losses W EEEERE (1,951) (1,695)
242,049 258,488

The retention receivables included in contract assets are to be
settled at the end of the reporting period as follows:

AHEERNNEWRE S G RERRE
=R (NN

20234

HK$'000

T

Within one year —FR 59,281 40,676
After one year —4Fi% 39,090 41,634
98,371 82,310

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (844) (818)
97,527 81,492

The increases in contract assets during the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023 were mainly due to: (i) the increases
in retention receivables as a result of increases in number of
ongoing and completed contracts under the defects liability
period during the years; and (i) changes in the size of contract
works that the relevant services were completed but yet been
certified by architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by the customers at the end of the reporting
periods.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 20. EHNEEREBE®@

(continued)

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets are set out BREENRENEFIFHNW35 -

in note 35.

Contract liabilities as at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 31 20224818 ~ 20233 H31H K&2024
March 2024 amounting to HK$10,445,000, HK$16,332,000 F3IA3MEME LN AES 51/10,445,000
and HK$6,791,000 represent the Group’s obligation to TT ~ 16,332,000/ 7T }6,791,000% 7T -
transfer of E&M engineering services to customers for which EASBERKETERBERETASELE
the Group has received advance payments from the customers. HEPUWEBENFIBENE P 2EE °
Contract liabilities as at 1 April 2022 and 2023 have been 20226 R2023F4A1BHEHNEEE D
recognised as revenue for the years ended 31 March 2023 and IR B E2023F 2024F 3 A31HILFE
2024 respectively. R E

The decrease in contract liabilities during the year ended HE2024F3A31AILFENEHNEER
31 March 2024 (2023: increase) is mainly due to contract (20236 - N HEEHRAI—FEH
liabilities in prior year recognised as revenue during the year BHABERANEERRASETHRE K
for the ongoing and completed projects (2023: advances by TH B /U (2023F - MEBARE THE
customers for certain new projects at initial stage at the end of BERVIIARERE R HIRK)

the reporting period).

PLEDGED BANK BALANCES, CASH AND 21. EEFRTER RERBEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS ZEY

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s pledged bank balances M2024F3A318 - AEERNEEIFRTT
were a fixed deposit with a bank that carried interest at fixed EHRAIRITRIEFR - HETFME3.8%
rates at 3.8% per annum (2023: fixed rates at 2.2% per (2023%F : EAEFFE22%)5TBWLEH
annum) and were secured for the grant of performance bonds RITAAKRERENBARISEERER -
to the Group by the bank. Further details are set out in note BN 29 -

29.

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and REMRSEEYRRBEHRFTRRET
short term deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group's HEBEFAEASBERBRESEE - R©
short term cash commitments. Included in the Group's cash 20243 A31H - ARENHR e KEeE
and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2024 was fixed deposits EBYBRE—EFHRNRITREIBHA LR
with banks with original maturity less than three months =BEAMEBEEEFR  £8/515,138,000%
amounting to HK$15,138,000 (2023: HK$10,098,000) which 70 (20234F : 10,098,000/ 7T) « HiZEF
carried interest at fixed rates ranging from 3.8% to 4.3% per FRRNTF38%E43%5T 5 (20234 -
annum (2023: 2.8%). The other bank balances carried interest 2.8%) > BA2024F3 A31H » HMRIT4
at prevailing market interest rate at 0.75% (2023: ranging BRI FIR0.75% (20234 : N F
from 0.625% to 0.75%) as at 31 March 2024. 0.625%%0.75% )5t & °

Details of the impairment assessment of pledged bank EEIBRITE SR RIRITEBR AR EFTEHE
balances and bank balances are set out in note 35. B PABTEESS o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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22. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES AND

22. BSENRBAREMRE R

ACCRUALS REEH
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Trade payables B S RENFIE 29,403 52,924
Retention payables FEMRES 15,200 13,205

Amount due to a non-controlling B — R B R B e AR SR IR

interest of a subsidiary 940 -
Accruals FEETE A 13,140 11,137
58,683 77,266

132

Included in the Group'’s trade and retention payables as at 31
March 2024 are amounts due to related parties amounting to
HK$6,895,000 (2023: HK$4,556,000), in aggregate, which
are trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable
according to the relevant agreements. The amount due to a
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables of the
Group based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

MR2024%3 8310 AEBE 5 EMK
BHEEMSRESBEEMNEEHFES
#6,895,0007% 7T (20234 : 4,556,000
T0) c RERIEAE MY  EEKF 25
MBBREHEBHEEE BN —XMNBEA
BIFEERESREAERR  RERIEE
AEE -

AT RBRHmEMARNEEE S ENRIER
BRAMMRER DT

2024 2023

20245 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHT T

0 to 30 days 0Z30K 18,128 45,242
31 to 90 days 31290K 10,220 7,682
Over 180 days 180K L 1,055 —
29,403 52,924

The credit period of trade payables granted by the Group’s
suppliers are usually within 30 days (2023: 30 days).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (continued)

The Group usually retains 5% to 10% of each interim
payment to its subcontractors providing services to the Group
as retention payables. According to the relevant contracts
with these subcontractors, 50% of the retention payables is
usually released upon handing over of the residential units
to respective owners by the developers for residential units
projects and completion of services under contracts for other
projects, with the remaining 50% of the retention payables
to be released after six months of the first payment of the
retention payables. The retention payables of the Group are to
be settled at the end of the reporting period as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

/I ) A2 o LA | o —
(B HEHE) - HL0E

22. E5BAREAREARE SN
REGER@®
AEEBEHAAEBERBENS 0
RB S th B 3RH05% 2 10% 15 B K
RES - BEEZZHBEOEBEL -
50% M FET R Bl & % W E R A8 B %
BEHEEBARATEREARTRE
I8 B A KBRS T8 - T8 T 50% ME
RHRE S 57 B R 3 A ERHRE £ % <18
AB3E - RESHFAAEEELTRES
MEEMT :

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within six months NEAR 710 1,849
Within a period of more than six NE A A EEA N EA—FEA

months but not exceeding one year 5,894 4,790
More than one year —FLAE 8,596 6,566
15,200 13,205

BANK LOANS 23. IRITER
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Bank loans, secured and guaranteed SRTER . B REER 23,594 47,550
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

S B gy )
BJLYN)

23. BANK LOANS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the above

23. SR1ITER @

2024 2023
20245 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

A B EER R R B/IT

bank loans that contain a repayable I HEREE(RNRSAEETIR)

on demand clause (shown under B/BER

current liabilities) but repayable:
Within one year —FNR 1,934 24,538
Within a period of more than one year —%F A H{ETEBBRFHIN

but not exceeding two years 1,413 1,394
Within a period of more than two years R HENBBAFEHR

but not exceeding five years 6,100 5,978
More than five years AFAE 14,147 15,640

23,594 47,550

The Group's bank loans as at 31 March 2024 were lent by a
bank under its bank facilities granted to the Group. The bank
facilities were guaranteed by the corporate guarantee given by
the Company (2023: guaranteed by the corporate guarantee
given by the Company). In addition, the secured bank loans
were secured by the Group’s two carpark spaces and an office
premise (2023: three carpark spaces and an office premise).

Notwithstanding the provisions stated in the aforesaid
bank facilities, the bank may at any time without prior
notice, modify, cancel or suspend the banking facilities,
at the sole discretion of such bank; including, without
limitation, cancelling any unutilised facilities and declaring
any outstanding amount to be immediately due and payable.
Accordingly, the above bank loans were classified as current
liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

Included in the bank loans as at 31 March 2024 were bank
loans of HK$23,594,000 (2023: HK$46,967,000), which bore
variable interest rate from 2.75% to 2.85% per annum below
Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by the relevant bank (2023:
variable interest rate from 2.5% to 2.85% per annum below
Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by the relevant bank). At 31
March 2023, the bank loans of HK$583,000 bore variable
interest rate at 1.5% per annum above one-month Hong
Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR").
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. LEASE LIABILITIES 24, HEEE
2024 2023
2024F 20234
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET FET
Non-current IERED 5,250 8,277
Current mE 7,190 4,598
12,440 12,875
2024 2023
2024F 20234
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET FET
Lease liabilities payable: EAHEE8E:
— Within one year - —FNR 7,190 4,598
— Within a period of more than one — —FUAEENEBMRFHRA
year but not exceeding two years 4,242 5,723
— Within a period of more than two — MFLA BT BARFHA
years but not exceeding five years 1,008 2,554
12,440 12,875
The Group does not expose to a significant liquidity risk with REBWEMGEAEEREEFANERR
regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored BEEAR HEABRRASENM AR
within the Group's treasury function. BENESHE ©
. SHARE CAPITAL 25. R
Details of share capital of the Company are as follows: RATRRARZFHIBAT -

Number of
shares HK$'000

B8R T

Ordinary shares with par value of SIREEC.O1B AT @A
HK$0.01 each:
As at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and #2022F4H1H ~ 2023F
31 March 2024 3A31H&2024%3A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: 2217 MR L@

As at 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 72202254 H 18 &k2023F3H31H 800,000,000 8,000
Issue of ordinary shares (note 28) BTE BB (ME28) 10,827,000 108
As at 31 March 2024 720243 A31H 810,827,000 8,108
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26. ELEBIIE
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
Deferred tax assets EETIRE = 859 363
The following is the deferred tax asset (liabilities) recognised NTAERFERBEFECERANELTR
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: HEERB) REE

Depreciation
allowances
in excess  Accelerated
of related tax ECL
Tax losses depreciation depreciation provision

BB
& AR

WAES  FERE MERAFE  GHAH it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET  FAT FAR  TET TAR

At 1 April 2022 and 31 March 202254 A18 K

2023 2023F3A31H - - - 363 363
Credit (charge) to profitor loss 5T A (1K &) Ex (MFE10)

(note 10) 544 465 (544) 31 496
At 31 March 2024 12024634318 544 465 (544) 394 859
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

ASSETS ACQUISITION THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 31 August 2022, the Group completed acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Best Investment Development
Limited (“Best Investment”) and the rights of all sums
owing by it to the “Vendor”, an independent third party to
the Group, for a total cash consideration of HK$61,828,000
(the "Acquisition”). Best Investment’s principal activities
are holding of a workshop unit, a car parking space and a
heavy goods vehicle parking space of a building in Hong
Kong for rental income. Upon completion of the Acquisition,
Best Investment became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company which has occupied the workshop unit and the
car parking space for self-use since the expiry of the rental
agreements in September 2022 and continued to lease the
heavy goods vehicle parking space for rental purpose. The
directors of the Company determined that the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and investment property is not
a business.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised on the completion of
the Acquisition are as follows:

HK$'000
TAT

/RN T 2= 23-aH A
(k= FithEY)

27. giﬂﬂ&ﬁﬁ—%ﬁ MEARKREE

MR2022%F8A31H » AEBE KW E
SREERERAR(HEERE M2
HEBTRARERAEEBIE=H
[EHINBRENER  RIRERER
61,828,000/ ([ KIBEIE]) - ERRE
MNEBEBABBEEA —BEFH—ET
VBN - —EBEM N —EEREHEE
NEEmAS WA - REBEEBETRE @ E5
REREARARNZENBAR  AFE
WER2022F9 A B - HATEAZT
E BN RBENER YA #EREER
EHEN - ARFEERT  WEDE
B M A RIS EMEN IE—IBER -

RUREE BT REATNEEERFTERE
FWT :

Property, plant and equipment L E N L] 56,027

Investment property B 5,801

Amount due from the Vendor FEIRE 5 FIE 739

Other receivables, deposits, prepayments EAbFEUGRIA « 12 RTAN A 58
Rental deposits received and other payables B & e R EAEN B (797)
Amount due to the Vendor BN E S 0E (35,568)

26,260

Amount due to the Vendor acquired by the Group JEMANEBULEER = /7B 35,568

61,828

Consideration paid BRRE 61,828
BEBZERERAT 2024FFH
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28. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE 28. R BT EI R BT E

138

OPTION SCHEME
Share Award Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2023 Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 15 September 2023 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives, retaining and rewarding the eligible
employees. The 2023 Share Award Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing from 15
September 2023. There is no performance target attached to
the awarded shares and vesting will take place on 31 March of
each year beginning in 2024 and ending in 2033 and shall be
vested in 10 equal tranches. On 28 March 2024, the Company
allotted and issued 10,827,000 new shares to the trustee to
hold on trust.

Outstanding at 1 April 2023

% 17 52 B =t &l

N BR R R & ([ 2023 F IR 17 58 B
sH&l 1) J5RE20234F9 A 15HBIBR — 1A
RBREMEM  TEEMHRREHE
BREBLRBEFTAERET - 2023F K H
HE)ETEIH2023F9 15 HEAEW » AN
HAI10F - BEROTHAEEEE R -
SREE N 2024F EE2033F LN EF3
H31HET B2 RI10FMHET © 2024
F3A28H * ARRIMXFE AR RIEIT
10,827,000/ # A% 5 LAS5EFF A ©

Number of
shares

REEE

A2023F4 /1B KEE -

Granted during the year FRFRH 10,827,000
Vested during the year FRNERE (1,082,700)
Outstanding at 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31HKERE 9,744,300

The closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant
is HK$1.05 per share. The estimate fair value of the awarded
shares granted during the year ended 31 March 2024 was
approximately HK$9,282,000. The fair value is measured based
on the grant-date price with the adjustment of ex-dividend
discounted at the appropriate risk-free interest rate during
the requisite service period. Out of the aggregate 10,827,000
awarded shares, 2,022,000 awarded shares are granted to
five employees who are also the connected persons of Group.
Amounts of share-based payment expenses of HK$2,264,000
for share awards of the Company have been recognised in the
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Accel Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to written resolutions passed on 18 September 2019,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme is valid and
effective for a period commencing from 18 September 2019
and ending on the tenth anniversary of the date of listing
of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange on 18
October 2019. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide an incentive or reward for the grantees for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may, at its discretion, grant options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of the Company to any full-time or part-time
employees, consultants or potential employees, consultants,
executives or officers (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents, advisers who, in the sole opinion of the board of
directors of the Company, has contributed or will contribute to
the Group and whom the board of directors of the Company
may in its absolute discretion select and subject to such
conditions as it may think fit.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes adopted by the Group shall not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the ordinary share capital of the Company in
issue from time to time. The total number of ordinary shares of
the Company which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the ordinary shares in issue as
at the date of passing of the relevant resolution adopting the
Share Option Scheme. Share options granted to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any time and
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

28. R EBEFHEI R BRER 8w

iR T8
RIER2019F9 A 18HBEANEMIRE
= AR R —EERERE ([ BRE
T8l - BERRERTEI 820197918
R B A M R AR - WEZE2019F 104
18BARRBRMARE R EmHAFIEE
m o BIERT B2 B N REB R SRE AR
AEAEBATEZ ERISUBEERE ©

RIEBREAE  ARFAESSARIER
AR RS EAEE R RN EA 2B R
BER  FBRANEERE  FERA 1T
BABSSARE (BRHITES - AT
EENEUFMTESR)  RARRESE
E2ERARELIERAEEELERAE
IR - TP - AA - RERERMA
RARREZE2EBMBRERNTAHREA
FEFEZATETARBARE BB ZE
Pt o

PARIR AR AEET 8 R AN B R AR (T &
R EIE BB EFITENTE M A
TE BRI TER AR B TTH RN RS
HE  AETEBRBAQRTREBITYE
BRAR30% - RIBIE R ET 8 R A
EETEME MBS FERENAE
PR T(E A ] TR R B ITHI A A A
TERAE - AL TSHRBREANERE
EMEAAERBRE BB BHITLAERN
10% * BT ARBEE - ZETBABR
FERRE - RFESEBEAZERAE
AR EBARRNRBYIERITESE -
gEoh - EEA @A BETR T ARRE
ERFERBUIFNITES « ST E
BAZEABRE  EEMRRREBAEA
AFDBETEREIRN0.1% » REEEA
BREE BB RERAIRZART
@R TERTE)HBS5,000,000% T -
AEINREAD FERERB -

BREEEZRERAT 2024FF8H
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28. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE

OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
14 days after the date of the offer, upon the Company
received the duplicate offer document comprising acceptance
of the option duly signed by the grantee together with
the consideration of HK$1.00. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determined by the directors of the
Company, save that such period shall not be more than ten
years from the date of the offer of the share options, subject
to the provisions for early termination as set out in the Share
Option Scheme.

Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors of the
Company at its absolute discretion, there is no requirement of
a minimum period for which an option must be held before an
option can be exercised. In addition, there is no performance
target which must be achieved before any of the options can
be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the
board of directors of the Company, but in any event shall
be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the ordinary
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets on the date of the offer of the share
options, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the ordinary shares of the company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s ordinary shares.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its effective date on 18
September 2019 and there was no outstanding share option as
at 31 March 2024 and 2023.
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28. R EBEFHEI R BRES &m0

BIRREST B (@)

HHEREZZHTRELHBHEZ148
A RARRZEEZHNHRIAN(EFBIE
ERALREE ZBREZE R ER
1.008 T2 RIEBEER - FIiREEBREZ
TEHERA AT ESEE - HEHEAE
EERESHABHETTITEBAeTF I
ZHERRE AT EI R IRATAR IHEFIR EFTAR IR ©

BRIFHARBEZTS2EBNBETE - 8
I AR E B A Rl TITIE AT B+ A BB A
EVERAEHARR o Ubsh - TREAEAREARE R T
TTEABEBNRERER -

BREZ TEEMAATESSRT
ERMAAZ L BUT 2 BEE  ORB
BESHES(EREER) MR TER
BRI 2 ADDEBBRTE ; () B
SHEENAAL LM FERRER
FR2 AAREBRTNE R
AEEBRZ AE -
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R T B IBAREERD - 176 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #8 $R R 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES

As at 31 March 2024, performance bonds of HK$94,428,000
(2023: HK$79,942,000) were given by banks in favour of the
Group's customers as security for the due performance and
observance of the Group’s obligations under the contracts
entered into between the Group and its customers. If
the Group fails to provide satisfactory performance to its
customers to whom performance guarantees have been
given, such customers may demand the banks to pay to them
the sum or sum stipulated in such demand. The Group will
become liable to compensate such banks accordingly. The
performance guarantees will be released upon completion of
the E&M engineering services.

Included in the performance bonds as at 31 March 2024 were
HK$367,000 (2023: HK$12,323,000), which were issued
under the bank facilities granted by a bank to the Group and
such bank facilities were secured by the Group’s pledged
bank balances (note 21) and corporate guarantee given by the
Company in favour of the bank. The remaining performance
bonds as at 31 March 2024 were issued under the bank
facilities granted by banks to the Group and such bank
facilities were secured by the Group’s two carpark spaces, an
office premise and corporate guarantee given by the Company
(2023: three carpark spaces, an office premise and corporate
guarantee given by the Company) in favour of the banks.

=5 gH. L IS] S = B =
(B =5 BB - L8 TR

/L

29. BHRE

2024 3 A31 B - 94,428,000 % JT
(20234 : 79,942,000/ 7T ) Y B #) 1R &
SHIRTUAEBEFAIBZAEL - 1
AAEBLZERTRETAEREARS
ZHEFIVMAEHNETEENER - MASE
B REMERNBORENETSRES AM
EMRR  ZSERFPAEZRBRITAFES
NEBASHEXEBERRTHNESE - ~5
B eREHZSRITERRERENS
T - BHRIE AR E TR RIS A R
[;//% o

MR2024F3 8318 BHRELBIE
367,0007% 7T (2023 4F : 12,323,000/ 7T )
RIBERITEAREE R HARITREE T A%
17 MABRITHERAEBCERIRT
ER(EE21) RA QB MIRITIREN D
EARVEEIR - R2024F3 A31 BT B
HRBES DIRBEZRARITAAEE R LD
IRITRE TUARTT - MBABRITRERAE
EEMMESEN - —ERAEWERAK
AEIARITIREM A AR (2023F « =
EfFEA - —EARLDEWERAR QGRS
KA RIEAR)VEFEIR ©

BEBZERERDE  2024FFH
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30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-

30.

BMERBRELERBENHER

TRFMASEREEDMEL B BN
9 BEASKIERGE

c MEIEB AT

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are EFEBEREIMNALEEGFERERE
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, O EARMEGHFALRERENRER
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows BYRKEEME

as cash flows used in financing activities.

Amount due
to a non-
controlling
Interest Lease Dividend interest of
payable liabilities payable a subsidiary
Ef—=
HEAF
FER
ERFIE HEERE RITER ERRE EEHNE -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEL AL TAT
At 1 April 2022 12022645818 - 3,608 14,541 - - 18,149
Cash changes: Fe#g:
Interest paid BEfIHE (638) (291) = = = (929)
Repayments of bank loans BB RTER = = (24,247 = = (24,247)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEME & & - (5,437) = S = (5,437)
New bank loan raised HEERTER = = 57,256 = = 57,256
Dividend paid EffRE - - - (29,600) - (29,600)
Non-cash changes: FE+EG
Finance costs recognised BB A 638 291 - - = 929
Additions of lease contracts  EAHEAL
(note 31) (PizE31) - 15,926 - - - 15,926
Early termination of lease @RI LHE = (1,222) = = = (1,222)
Dividend declared (note 11)  BEERIRE (Fi3E11) - - - 29,600 - 29,600
At 31 March 2023 1202337310 - 12,875 47,550 - - 60,425
Cash changes: BEeEg:
Interest paid BIHE (1,308) (418) = = = (1,722)
Repayments of bank loans ~ {ZiER1TE - - (33,956) - = (33,956)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHE & & - (4,701) - - = (4,701)
New bank loan raised MERRITEN - - 10,000 - - 10,000
Dividend paid ERBRE = = = (18,400) = (18,400)
Advances from non- RE—RMBARE
controlling interest of a iRER BT
subsidiary - - - - %0 940
Non-cash changes: FE2 B .
Finance costs recognised BRRHBRA 1,308 414 - - - 1,722
Additions of lease contracts  HEFEEAH
(note 31) (ME31) - 4,586 - - - 4,586
Early termination of lease AT ITAE = (320) = = = (320
Dividend declared (note 11) 2= RIS (MzE11) - - = 18,400 = 18,400
At 31 March 2024 202453 A431H - 12,440 23,594 - 940 36,974
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 48

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group entered
into rental agreements that increases its right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities by HK$4,586,000 (2023: HK$15,926,000)
and HK$4,586,000 (2023: HK$15,926,000) respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined the MPF Scheme which is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and the
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Under the MPF
Scheme, there will not be any forfeited contribution available
to reduce the contribution payable by the Group.

The Group’s retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss as set out in
note 8 represent contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at the rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

31.

32.

BRI RMEE

/64 AH G 1A IN) SHe = Ty == )
(Br= B! - FL BTSN

/L

FEFBEERS
HE2024F3A31HILEFE - AEBFL
M thE - EmEFRBEEERHEESRE
% $l14,586,0007% 7T (20234 : 15,926,000
¥ 7T ) & 4,586,000 76 JT ( 2023 £ :
15,926,000/ 7T ) °

RRERETE

REBEE MARBRSE DB GBI RHI
TRt EeE ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
g - BELFENEEBYUNEIEENE
- DXBURFTAEROESES - R
ERESHAENRA  EXMEEHAR
BIZARBIFTERM L R A E B - AEE
BB EFENERREERBREEIE
HETR MR - RigeBESHE - B TEH
EAE R WA R AT BAEFIR AR = E B2 e
R -

AP REBAHEL - AKEE @B S A IED
BRI EAFT IR B BRI - BE
MAEBIRAA SR BFTRAN L XM EDE
SRR -

BERERAE  2024FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5S B #§ R R M5 E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BB ARG
(a) Other than the transactions and balances with related (a) [ﬁ??v?./:l\ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi\@%ﬁﬁﬁ?gﬂ@ﬁi%
parties disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BT 5 RASERID - RERERAE
statements, the Group had the following transactions fﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬂ@‘ﬁ AIAENUTRS :

with related parties during the year:

(1) Subcontracting charges and others paid to ~ FLE S RITIZA R (—fH

Shun Tat Air Conditioning Engineering ZEETHRREOET

Company, a company controlled by a BHNAR IO BRE

grandson of the uncle of Dr. Ko K EAh, 3,142 3,727
(2)  Subcontracting charges paid to Yuk Shing ~ [AI/BREE L TI2A A

Advertising & Decoration Engineering (—fAxaEtzrr/
Co., a company controlled by a brother of X Ff

Dr. Ko NEE 2,052 593
(3)  Purchases of construction materials from AENERARLE(—MH
Mibuka Denki Electrical Controls Limited, S &iEiEHIMAE)
a company controlled by Dr. Ko EE AR 344 205
(4)  Purchases of construction materials and RERZEHEHERAA
others from Chit Shing Air Conditioning (—M Tviﬁﬁ G
Trading Limited, a company controlled by~ HFEHI AR EE
a grandson of the uncle of Dr. Ko BREME R EM 34,086 36,067
(5) (a)  Staff costs paid to employeeswho ()  [M{EE&EEREE
are Mr. Ko Chun Hei Rand, son of Dr. (BEtiERLe
Ko and Ms. Cheung, a niece of Dr. 5F)  BELTEE
Ko and a brother, a brother-in-law, a TRFRL TR
nephew and nieces of Ms. Cheung ML~ BEFREEX
HEIRA 3,753 3,429
(b)  Share-based payments to these ) MZEEEELHMN
employees B in BERERR 423 -
(6)  Amounts paid to Shing Chak Development  $tA T EHABZHRGR
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Dr. NE(—HASELEE
Ko (Note i) ?’Eﬁﬁﬁ)@ﬂ)iﬁmlﬁ
it
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities -HEBREFERE - 28
— Lease liabilities -HEEE = 607
(7)  Amounts paid to Milan Development AT EHAKBERAR
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Ms. A &)(—H@AKRZ L2 &
Cheung (Note i) ?z;f%;&ﬁ)iﬁ%ﬂlﬁ
il
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities -HEBREFERY 10 15
— Lease liabilities —-HEaE 185 324
(8)  Amounts paid to Dr. Ko (Note iii) A& L 4 & 58 (T aiii)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities —-HEEREZAERX 25 10
— Lease liabilities -HEaE 243 258
(9)  Amounts paid to Ms. Cheung (Note iv) MRZ TS5 (Bl siv)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities - HERECFBHZ 1 4
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 108 115
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

D

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(S L3 A5 23-gHbA , #4915 SEE 51 7= )
(BFrA= B EBHY) » LB T8 )

33. BEEAE RS @m0

(@) (continued) (a) @

The above transactions were conducted in accordance L 32 5 THAR B 46 B 165 5 0 16 SR

with the terms of the relevant agreements. fTe

Notes: Bif5E

(i) Asat 31 March 2024 and 2023, the carrying amount of iy  F2024F 202343A31H - 8
the relevant right-of-use assets was nil and the carrying TREAEZREABEATUREE
amount of the lease liabilities was nil. BEZEEERE -

(i) As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of the (i) M2024F3A31H - (HEAFERESE
relevant right-of-use assets was HK$510,000 (2023: B 2 BRE{E A 510,0007% 7t (2023
nil) and the carrying amount of the lease liabilities was FT)UALRHEAGEZRRES
HK$514,000 (2023: nil). 514,000870(2023%F : &) »

(i) As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of the (i)  F2024%F3F31H  HBFERESE
relevant right-of-use assets was HK$693,000 (2023: E 2 BR ™ 8 4 693,0007% 7T (2023
HK$945,000) and the carrying amount of the lease £ : 945,000 L) AREEEE 2
liabilities was HK$706,000 (2023: HK$949,000). BR T {8 A& 706,00078 7T (20234 :

949,000%7T) °

(iv)  As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of the (iv) 20243318 HBFERESE
relevant right-of-use assets was HK$308,000 (2023: B 2 BR {8 A& 308,0007% 7T (2023
HK$420,000) and the carrying amount of the lease £ : 420,000 ) AREEEE L
liabilities was HK$314,000 (2023: HK$422,000). BRTE (B A 314,0007%8 7T (20234

422,000/ 7T) °
(b) Compensation of key management (b) FEEE SR

personnel

Compensation of key management personnel represents FEEEABHFMERFEARARE

the remuneration of the directors of the Company and ERFEESRERENFTM - 0T

senior management of the Group during the year were as Fr7R

follows:

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$’000
FEx FAT

Short-term benefits R HItE 9,742 7,520

Post-employment benefits BER2 1B 90 90

Share-based payments expenses AR AER S 2 X 251 -

10,083 7,610
(c) Asat 31 March 2024, the Group was granted certain (c) 2024438310 » ANEmMEE—

bank facilities which were secured by personal
guarantees of Dr. Ko and Ms. Cheung (2023:
personal guarantees of Dr. Ko and Ms. Cheung) at nil
consideration.

RITRLE - RFRITRENEEIUS
Bt MR LR A AFELR (20234 -
=BT MR T EEATER)(EER o

BEEZRERAT 2024FEH
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34.

35.

Accel

T e By et
A8 TT )

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes bank loans and lease liabilities disclosed in notes
23 and 24 respectively, net of pledged bank balances, bank
balances and cash disclosed in note 21, and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
share premium, other reserve and retained profits.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the management of the
Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with the capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, issuance of new
shares and the raise of borrowings or repayment of existing
debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Financial asset mandatorily

34. EXERERE

35.

AEBEEEEERNUABREEERENR
BRE REBRLERRRAFE -
RAEBRREE - AREBBEFENE
BREEFTE -

AEBNENGREEHFES(BHED
RME23R 24 BENRTERLEER
&) - KR EMRITER - RITEHRL
B (W21 FARE) AR AR BHEA A
iR (RREETRA - BEE &
fifetifs R AR B B F)

AEB BB B PMERSNUE I E AR

):'_Eo

AEBEEEETE R ELGE - EAI
BAH -0  AREEEESERED
AR BEREENER - AEE&ES
SABE - BTG RERERHEE
REBHTOEBRRELRRE -

ERMTH
SR T AR

2024
20245

2023
20234
HK$'000
T

HK$"000
FET

SR EA R FHE ABREZ

measured at FVTPL SREE 5,000 5,000

Financial assets at amortised cost HREBEN AT RSB EE 176,754 182,525
Financial liabilities Eay=Li=

Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEEN AT RN S mEasE 69,137 113,679
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, refundable rental deposits, amounts due
from non-controlling interests of subsidiaries, finance lease
receivable, pledged bank balances, bank balances and
cash, trade and retention payables, amount due to a non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary and bank loans. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

The Group’s operations expose it to a number of financial
risks: principally the interest rate risk, the credit risk and the
liquidity risk. Continuous monitoring of these risks ensures
that the Group is protected against any adverse effects of such
risks so far as it is possible and foreseeable.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and bank loans (see notes 21
and 23, respectively, for details of these balances). Fixed bank
deposits at fixed interest rate exposed the Group of fair value
interest rate risk. The Group does not have a policy on cash
flow hedges of interest rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should need arise.

A sensitivity analysis is not presented because, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, reasonably possible change
in interest rate would not result in significant impact to the
post-tax profit of the Group.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to trade and other receivables,
refundable rental deposits, amounts due from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries, finance lease receivable, contract
assets, pledged bank balances and bank balances. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets and
contract assets.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debtors. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables
and contract assets. The management of the Group performs
impairment assessment on individual debtor basis to estimate
the amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables and contract
assets based on internal credit ratings and calculated ECL rates
with adjustment for forward-looking information which are
estimated based on external sources of data.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #8 $R R 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (continued)

Impairment loss under ECL model of HK$434,000 (2023:
HK$631,000) and HK$1,951,000 (2023: HK$1,695,000) are
recognised for the Group’s trade receivables and contract
assets, respectively, as at 31 March 2024 and reversal of
impairment loss of HK$197,000 (2023: nil) and impairment
loss of HK$256,000 (2023: HK$127,000) in respect of trade
receivables and contract assets were recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2024. Average loss rates for the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets are approximately 0.6%
(2023: 0.6%) and 0.9% (2023: 0.7%), respectively as at 31
March 2024. Details of the quantitative disclosure are set out
below in this note.

Finance lease receivable, other receivables, refundable
rental deposits and amounts due from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

The management of the Group performs impairment
assessment on individual debtor basis to estimate the
amount of ECL of finance lease receivable, other receivables,
refundable rental deposits and amounts due from non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries based on internal credit
ratings, ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of
respective counterparties and forward-looking information.
As at 31 March 2024, except for the other receivables of
HK$2,590,000 (2023: HK$2,590,000) which is credit-impaired,
there has been no significant increase in credit risks of the
Group's finance lease receivable, other receivables, refundable
rental deposits and amounts due from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries. As at 31 March 2024, an allowance
for impairment losses of HK$1,942,000 (2023: HK$1,295,000)
on other receivables was recognised.

Pledged bank balances and bank balances

The management of the Group assesses that the Group’s
pledged bank balances and bank balances are at low credit
risk and no impairment was recognised as at 31 March 2024
and 2023 and for the years then ended because they are
placed with reputable banks with good external credit ratings,
and ECL, if any, is insignificant.
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R2024F3A31H K HIERAEENE
SRERWFBRANEERRBHREEERE
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631,000 7T ) %.1,951,000/8 7T (20234
1,695,000 7C) * M&Z=2024F3 8318
IFFEERRE BB ERENEER
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42 ) I {8 B3 48 256,000 78 7T (2023 4F
127,000 7T) » W202443 A31H @ A
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UGB E R B 3EIE R E R RIERNEE R R
AL - PA2024%F3A318 @ BEAM
FEW R IERE R B R TR 5 1,942,000/ 7T
(20234 : 1,295,000/87T) °
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
For assessment of the ECL of the Group’s financial assets
and contract assets, the Group's internal credit risk grading

assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit

rating
B
fEETR

Level 1

£

Level 2

FER

Level 3

F=&

Level 4

EJUE

Level 5

FRHR

150

Description
w8

The counterparty has great ability of repayment,
low risk of default and has no history of
impairment loss.

BFERERENRI - ERERERERE
BELH

The counterparty has good ability of repayment,
which may be influenced by macro
environment and economic situation.

BFERERENRI - AR EBRIREREH
e -

The counterparty has ability of repayment but
usually settles in full after due date.

HFHARERN  BRFRIMARER
BE -

The counterparty may not have ability of
repayment, and is evidenced to be credit-

impaired.
BFERAIRTEERE SN - BEREEERE
[EBg °

The counterparty has no ability to repay its
debts and the receivable is not expected to be
collectable.

BFERWEEEBEE S - AR RARDEERK
KA °
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R ARENEREERANEENT
HEEEBRMNS  ARENABEERR

AR EBYE A TR

Trade receivables
and contract assets
BESEWRER
BHEE

Lifetime ECL - not credit-
impaired

EHBEREEER -1E
EERE

Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired

ZHEREEBE - 1TE
EERE
Lifetime ECL - not credit-
impaired
ZHEREEBE - 1E
EERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired

EHBEREEBE-
BIEERE

Amount is written off

SRECHEH

Other financial assets

HitEMEE

12m ECL

12EAEHEEER

12m ECL

R2EABREEER

Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired

FHEREEEE -1 E
EERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired

EHEREEEE-BEE
YERE]

Amount is written off

SRECHIH
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. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. @R T AEmw)
Financial risk management objectives and B R B B 2 B A R BUR (8
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) =R BB ()
The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group's TRFIMN2024F 2 2023F3 A31BAE
financial assets and contract assets as at 31 March 2024 and EnemMEERSNEENEERR(BE
2023, which are subject to ECL assessment: TIEEMEEERT)

Gross carrying amount
as at 31 March
M3A3MAZHARESE
12m ECL or Internal

lifetime ECL credit rating 2024 2023

12 A=K =
2 HEHEEEE EEFTR 20245 2023%
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FEIT

Financial assets at
amortised cost:

RBERAFTENER
BE:
Trade receivables Lifetime ECL Level 1 64,388 86,673
B 5 EIGRIA (not credit-impaired) F—MR
2HEMEEEE Level 2 549 11,763
(WEEERE) FR
Level 3 6,089 6,890
EF=R
Other receivables 12m ECL (not credit-impaired)  Level 3 3,340 1,210
HAbfEUGRIA 12{8 ATEEEEEE F=
(W EEERE)
Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)  Level 4 2,590 2,590
ZHEEEEEEB(EERE) FOERK
Refundable rental 12m ECL Level 2 869 966
deposits 1218 A B ERE E & B ER
AEREIAESES
Amounts due from non- 12m ECL Level 2 1 =
controlling interests 1216 B TE B = B /518 BT
of subsidiaries
FH&ZW% GE=ie
TJ\I
Finance lease receivable 12m ECL Level 2 2,361 =
BEREREWIE RERTEHREEEE FR
Pledged bank balances  12m ECL Level 1 505 12,500
BIRHIRITA S 12{8 BBk F—H
Bank balances 12m ECL . Level 1 98,428 61,859
IRITHE SR REATEREEEE F—R
Other item:
HitEE :
Contracts assets Lifetime ECL Level 1 184,196 202,384
BHEE (not credit-impaired) E—1
ZHEEEEER Level 2 37,520 45,265
(W EEERE) FH
Level 3 22,284 12,534
F=M

EZRERAT  2024FF5R 151
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Allowance for credit losses

During the current year, the movements in allowance for
credit losses that has been recognised for trade receivables
and contract assets were as follows:

35.

€I BEmwm
BHEEMETE B AEREE @

1= E/E e R e B 7715 (4)
1EEEEREE

RAFEE  SEFERFBERENEERE
ROEEBERBEEHMT

Trade
receivables
BEZEW
MIE

Not credit-
impaired

Contract
assets

ERHEE
Not credit-
impaired
(lifetime
ECL)
FEERE
(2HA7RH
FEER)
HK$'000
T

(lifetime
ECL)
FEERE
(ZHATEHA
FEER)
HK$'000
FA&T

#Et
HK$'000
TAT

At 1 April 2022 M2022F4 818 631 1,568 2,199
Credit losses recognised, net of reversal {Z & E5i8HER - HIBRE[E] - 127 127
At 31 March 2023 20233 A31H 631 1,695 2,326
Credit losses recognised, net of reversal {ZEE1BHR - HIKREE (197) 256 59
At 31 March 2024 7202493 H31H 434 1,951 2,385

The Group has concentration of credit risk because 36% of
trade receivables and contract assets as at 31 March 2024
(2023: 58%) were due from the Group's top five customers.
The Group's top five customers are sizeable and reputable
companies. The management of the Group closely monitors
the subsequent settlement of the customers. In this regard,
the management of the Group considers the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

Accel Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of
borrowings, as appropriate.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities according to the terms of the
relevant contracts/agreements. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are

(S223R40 #) Bl )
(Br= BN LB TS R)

35. R T B

BEEMRETE R EREE@®

B EL/EE
AEENBRREBERMER(WER)E
B RHEEEEE I 2 MER T -

TRABRBABAFES L, BEOEREH
AEEEREBEORBAOIHA - ZX
DERREBEBORBERASREENA
SETRERERINRFANRE - R
BME  TwiR{TREBTELEMNNARE
% BEREREEEFNVRTEREE
REKPHE - Ht3HTESRAERN D
HANBRBEHBEERARETE - ARERE
MNERAERERE -

based on the agreed repayment dates. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted  On demand Total
average or within  Six months More than undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  six months  to one year one year cash flows amount
il RERS ~MER FEBRE

Fi55= AMEAR E-F —FHE REAH RE{E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

% TAT THT TR TET TET
Asat31March2024  R2024%3831H

Trade and retention BHRNTER

payables ENRES N/ATER 30,113 5,894 8,596 44,603 44,603
Amountduetoanon-  JEN—FRMBAH
controlling interest of a ~ FEFRIRIE L FIE

subsidiary N/ATEA 940 - - 940 940

Bank loans - variable rate  $R{TEH —Z8 3.03 23,594 = 23,594 23,59

54,647 5,894 8,596 69,137 69,137

Lease liabilties HERE 333 3,964 2,929 7414 14,307 12,440
Asat31March2023  A2023%3A31R

Trade and retention BHRNFER

payables ERES N/ATE 54,773 4,790 6,566 66,129 66,129

Bank loans - variable rate  $R17EZ %5 2.84 47,550 - - 47,550 47,550

102,323 4,790 6,566 113,679 113,679

Lease liabilties HEAE 3.00 3,666 1,268 8,574 13,508 12,875
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. €M T B

154

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As disclosed in note 23, the Group’s bank loans under the
banking facilities of the Group, might be immediately due
and repayable on demand by the relevant bank without prior
notice to the Group.

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
management of the Group does not believe that it is probable
that the bank will exercise its discretionary right to demand
immediate repayment. The management of the Group
believes that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the relevant
bank facilities letters, details of which are set out in the tables
below:

BHEEMETE B AEREE @

B E LA &)

WKIFE23AT IR - AEBERITRE THR
TER AIRESRAKELBAAEERN
1R T BRI R TT ESKBNEF B HA(EE -

ERIAEENMBAR - AEEEERE
RARIT IR RETT R AR B 2 LA
BN - AREEEERE  ZFRITER
KR ARAERRIRTTBY & oK 1 P B AV 5t BB 5K
BEMEE - FFEN TR

Total
Less than Over undiscounted Carrying
one year 1-2 years 2-5 years LA cash flows amount
AERRE
PR-F 1225 2255 REQE REAH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT BT THT TET BT THT
Asat31March2024  R2024%3H31H
Bank loans - variable rate  #R{TEH— 28 2,612 2,050 6,149 17,940 28,751 23,594
As at 31 March 2023 R2023%53A31R
Bank loans - variable rate  $B{TEF %8 25,520 2,015 6,046 19,652 53,233 47,550

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. €M T Em)

Financial risk management objectives and MR R EE B E R EBUR (@)
policies (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are BEEMEEL L FETEZLRER
measured at fair value on a recurring basis THEEZ L FE

The Group's financial asset at FVTPL is measured at fair value REEZAFEFTABEHNEHEENS
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives WMEMRADNFERFTE - TRIE®HZES
information about how the fair value of the financial asset is BMEENANTEEE A E(LEGHERM
determined (in particular, the valuation technique and inputs METE R ABIE) A RBIBE AT ERTE
used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which ZHASENTEBREEMSATE;=
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) PEBEANTEER(EF—REE=F)Z
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value Rt o

measurements is observable.

For valuation technique using discounted cash flows, the HERMARBRReRE - FAZMAX
discount rate used take into consideration the credit risk of ZRENIAEEEBAZS A ZEER
the relevant counterparties of the contracts or the Group, as fex - A o

appropriate.

Fair value as at

AV
Fair value Valuation(s) technique and
Financial assets 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 hierarchy  key input(s)
THEE 2024%3A318 202393A31H LAVEER GERNREIERARE
Project loan Assets — Assets—  Level 3 Valuation techniques: Discounted cash
HEER HK$5,000,000  HK$5,000,000 H=#% flow
EE- BE— HERI : BRRERE

5,000,0005& T 5,000,000/8 7T
Key inputs: Forward interest rates,
contracted interest rates and discount
rate.
FEBASE - BEME - SR
RERER K o

There is no transfer amongst level 1, 2 and 3 for both years. MEN F—H - F_EGRE=FH2EY
fEEEIR o
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements:

At 1 April 2022

Purchased BE

20224818

35. €t T B
BHEEMETE B AEREE @

AR M EEL N FEGECAEE
TREESLFEE)

FZHRAFEFEZEER
Financial asset

at FVTPL
BATERA

BHcERMEE
HK$'000
TAT

5,000

At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024

7202393 A31H K&20249F3A31H

5,000

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital expenditure in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements

FAsZ

TREEMEEUATFEH B2 2B
TAAFHEHE

AEBEEEERR  NEAMBRRARK

BENRAARNEREENSRAGBNER
EEEENFEES

36. EAEIE

2024
20245

2023
20234
HK$'000
FETT

HK$°000
TR

BRWEYE BELREBZERH
BRNGAEVBERERTBBZER

353 12,353
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

37.

The Company has direct and indirect shareholdings of the

following subsidiaries:

Name of Place of
subsidiaries incorporation
WE
ACEL AR 3L 3t B
Directly held:
EiEH:
Ascend Group BVI

Holdings Limited

Ascend Group EBELHE
Holdings Limited

Indirectly held:

BERR

Chit Tat Hong Kong
e BE

Accel Innovations Hong Kong
Limited

BREMARRE  FE

Accel Development  Hong Kong
Limited

BEERRE BA
BRAT

Accel Green Building  Hong Kong
Limited
BEERERAR BB

Assure Fintech Hong Kong
Limited

BEERMBEER BE
N

Place of
operations

bk

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
Hong Kong

Issued and
fully paid
share capital
BRTR
BRRE

HK$2

28T

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7T

HK$10,000

10,000 7T

HK$1,000,000

1,000,0007% 7T

HK$10,000
10,000 7T
HK$10,000

10,0007 7T

(A DA 2FA4N + #4955 Bl )
(Br= BN LB TS R)

RREIME A RS

RRFETIIM B R EER BE&EEZER
1

Equity interest
attributable to
the Group
rEEEGRE

2024 2023  Principal activities

20245 2023%F EEEK

100% 100%  Investment holding

100% 100% WEERK

100% 100%  Provision of E&M
engineering services

100% 100% fREEE TR

100% 100%  Sales and production
of disinfection spray
equipment and
accessories

100% 100% HEBHRERE A
HEREE

100% 100%  Inactive

100% 100% EEex

100% 100%  Inactive
100% 100% EEE%
70% 70%  Inactive

70% 70% EELE
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 37. XA RIME A RIS @
COMPANY (continued)
Equity interest
attributable to
the Group
rEEEGRE
Issued and
Name of Place of Place of fully paid
subsidiaries incorporation operations share capital 2024 2023  Principal activities
WS BRTR
AR EH AR Lt B BE MERE  2024F 2023 FEEEK
Accel Education Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 70% 70%  Provision of education
& Immigration consultancy service
Center Limited
FRREERTL  BE &R 10,000%7T 70% 70% REHEFARS
BRAT
Accel New Energy ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 52% 52%  Inactive
Limited
REMERERLR BE Bt 10,0007 52% 52% EfEE:
Accel Construction  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited
BEREERRR  BE BE 1,000,000/ 100% 100% EEEE
Best Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Properties holding
ERRE BE BE 10,0007%7T 100% 100% FHAENE
Gain Upward Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BARERRRR  FE EE BT 100% 100% REZK
Accel International ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Investment
Limited
ERERRAER BE 0 10,0007 100% 100% EEE¥
NS
Right Team Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$22,222 55% 55%  Recycling business
Enterprise Limited
FBRCEERRR  BE &R 22,222%7 55% 55% BT
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during RAEE » WENBARBEITEHRER
the year. FH o
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B I8 8RR MIcE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. XA R R R FE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Statement of Financial Position of the RQ B BAR R TR
Company
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—TEMHE R BMRE 77,266 77,266
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEULBH B A R FUE 164,372 105,539
241,638 182,805
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a subsidiary JE W — PRIt B A B FRIE 19,309 44,594
Other receivables and prepayments H Atb fEUGRIA R TE 5RIE 1,338 1,646
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEEY 1,212 2,206
21,859 48,446
Current liabilities Reas
Accruals FEstER - 1,080
Tax payable FERIREIE 2,230 565
2,230 1,645
Net current assets REEETE 19,629 46,801
Net assets BEEFRE 261,267 229,606
Capital and reserves BEXRR#E
Share capital [f &N 8,108 8,000
Reserves @ 253,159 221,606
Total equity R 261,267 229,606
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (continued)
Note:

The movement on reserves of the Company are as follows:

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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ARFRERBEIIOT :

B IS SRR EE

AN T M BERRTR R RHE@®

Share Treasury  Share award Retained
premium shares reserve profits Total
RIDEE ERRE RORBREE RE A ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT THAT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2022 R2022F4R18 195,606 - - 35,406 231,012
Profit and total comprehensive FREHREZERREE
income for the year - - - 20,194 20,194
Dividends recognised as distribution BRAEARE
(note 11) (P11 - - - (29,600) (29,600)
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3A318 195,606 = £ 26,000 221,606
Profit and total comprehensive FRBARZERELEE
income for the year - - - 47,797 47,797
Recognition of equity-settled RN EREE RN A
share-based payment ERERT - - 2,264 - 2,264
Issuance of shares in connection with  5£20234 (7 12 E 1 &I
the 2023 Share Award Scheme BT D = (108) - - (108)
Shares vested under the 2023 Share 1232023 F fi{) 2 Bnst 2
Award Scheme EHBRRR - 1 (1,094) 1,083 -
Dividends recognised as distribution BRAD RS
(note 11) (BizE11) = = = (18,400) (18,400)
At 31 March 2024 2024434318 195,606 (97) 1,170 56,480 253,159
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